
Northern Inyo Hospital

July 15 2020 Regular Meeting
July 15 2020 Regular Meeting - July 15 2020 Regular Meeting

Agenda, July 15 2020 Regular Meeting

Agenda, July 15 2020 Regular Meeting

Network Security Penetration Test Results

Network Security Penetration Test

Cares Act Funding, District Board Resolution 20-05

District Board Resolution 20-05, Cares Act

Pension Funding Policy

Pension Funding Policy and Procedure approval

Amendment 5 to Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

Amendment 5 to NIHD Retirement Plan

District Board Resolution 20-06, Appropriations Limit

District Board Resolution 20-06, Appropriations Limit

Refunding of 2010 Revenue Bonds, District Board Resolution 20-07

District Board Resolution 20-07, Bond Refinancing

Pathways for Development, Nursing Policy

Pathways for Development Policy and Procedure

Reports

ROI Committee Report, July 2020
Pioneer Home Health Quarterly Report, July 2020

Chief of Staff Report, July 2020

Medical Executive Committee report July 2015

Consent Agenda

Minutes, June 17 2020 regular meeting
Minutes, June 24 2020 Special Meeting
Minutes, June 26 2020 special meeting
Minutes, June 27 2020 Special Meeting
Minutes, July 6 2020 special meeting
Interim CEO Report
CNO Report, July 2020
Interim CMO Report, July 2020

.....................................................................3

............................................................................5

............................................................28

..................................................32

..................................................................34

..........................................36

..............................................42

.................................................44

............................................................................47
.................................................48

......................................................53

...................................................................75

...................................................................81

...................................................................84

...................................................................85
......................................................................86

...................................................................................................88
............................................................................................116

...............................................................................125

Page 1 of 380

1



Policy and Procedure annual approvals, Compliance
Consent Agenda Policies and Procedures (batch 2)

.........................................132
...........................................158

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 2 of 380

2

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

AGENDA 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

July 15, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 

2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA  
 

              Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to attend this Zoom meeting: 

  

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM:  (A link is also available on the NIHD Website) 

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

Password: 608092 

 

PHONE CONNECTION: 

888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

Meeting ID: 213 497 015 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
    

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. Public Comment:  At this time, persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda 

on any matter within the jurisdiction of the District Board. Members of the audience will have an 

opportunity to address the Board on every item on the agenda, and speakers will be limited to a 

maximum of three minutes each. The Board is prohibited from generally discussing or taking 

action on items not included on the agenda.  

3.  New Business: 

            A. Network Security Penetration test results (information item). 

            B.  District Board Resolution 20-05, Cares Act Funding (action item).      

C.  Policy and Procedure approval, Pension Funding Policy (action item). 

D.  Amendment 5 to the NIHD Defined Benefit Retirement Plan (action item). 

E.  Approval of annual Appropriations Limit, District Board Resolution 20-06 (action item). 

F.  District Board Resolution 20-07, Re-funding of 2010 Revenue Bonds (action item). 

G. Presentation on Managing NIHD Investment Portfolio (information item). 

H.  Policy and Procedure approval, Pathways for Development, Review, and Revision of Nursing  

      Standards (action item).   

      4.  Reports: 

            A.  Pioneer Home Health quarterly report (information item). 

Page 3 of 380

3

https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDlIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09


Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, July 15, 2020 

 

 

7/10/2020, 11:38 AM 

            B.  Building separation construction project update (information item). 

            C.  ROI Committee update approval (action item). 

            D.  Physician recruitment update (information item). 

      5.   Chief of Staff report, Stacey Brown MD:  

A. Annual Approvals (action items): 

1. Standardized Procedure – Certified Nurse Midwife 

2. Standardized Procedure – General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse 

Midwife 

3. Utilization Review Plan (2020) 

           ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                     Consent Agenda (action items) 

6. Approval of minutes of the June 17 2020 regular meeting  

7. Approval of minutes of the June 24 2020 special meeting 

8. Approval of minutes of the June 26 2020 special meeting 

9. Approval of minutes of the June 27 2020 special meeting 

10. Approval of minutes of the July 6 2020 special meeting 

11. Interim Chief Executive Officer report 

12. Chief Nursing Officer report 

13. Interim Chief Medical Officer report 

14. Policy and Procedure annual approvals  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Reports from Board members (information items).   

16. Adjournment to Closed Session to/for:   

A. Conference with Legal Counsel, anticipated litigation, significant exposure to litigation  

     (pursuant to Government code Section 54956.9(d)(2)) 2 cases.  

B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b))  

     title: Interim Chief Executive Officer. 

     17.  Return to Open Session and report of any action taken (information item). 

     18.  Adjournment. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 

participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 

prior to the meeting. 

Page 4 of 380

4



Page 5 of 380

5



Page 6 of 380

6



Page 7 of 380

7



Page 8 of 380

8



Page 9 of 380

9



Page 10 of 380

10



Page 11 of 380

11



Page 12 of 380

12



Page 13 of 380

13



Page 14 of 380

14



Page 15 of 380

15



Page 16 of 380

16



Page 17 of 380

17

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxXXX
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx
xxx



Page 18 of 380

18

xxxxxxxx
xxxxx
xxxx

xxxxx
xxxx

xxxxxxxxxx

xxx

xxxxxxx



Page 19 of 380

19

xxxxxx
xxxxxx
xxxxxx
xxxxxx

xxx



Page 20 of 380

20



Page 21 of 380

21



Page 22 of 380

22

xxxxxxxxxxx



Page 23 of 380

23

xxxxxxxxxxxxxx



Page 24 of 380

24

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

xxxxxxxxx



Page 25 of 380

25



Page 26 of 380

26



Page 27 of 380

27



Page 28 of 380

28



Page 29 of 380

29



Page 30 of 380

30



Page 31 of 380

31



38115.00001\32949609.2 

 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

Title:  Pension Funding Policy 

Scope: Accounting Department: Fiscal Services 

Source: Chief of Fiscal Services Effective Date: 6/__/2020 

 

  

 

 

Purpose: 

To assure timely funding of 401(a) Employee Defined Contribution Pension Plan and 

Defined Benefit Plans. 

 

Policy: 

According to the plan document, the District will work with the plan actuary to determine 

amounts necessary for funding of the 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan by IRS deadlines.   

 

The Actuary will provide the funding timeline annually for the Defined Benefit Plan during 

the annual plan report.  The Actuary will determine the recommended contribution for the 

Defined Benefit Plan for the plan year and will provide information about both the Normal 

Cost and the Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL).   

 

The funding recommendations for both the 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan and the 

Defined Benefit Plan will be presented to the NIHD Board of Directors for approval. 

 

For a twenty-four month period after the Proclamation on Declaring a National Emergency 

concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19”) Outbreak (“COVID-19 

National Emergency”) signed by the President of the United States on March 13, 2020, the 

NIHD Board of Directors may decide not to fund the recommended contribution for the 

Defined Benefit Plan, but instead fund an amount which shall be no less than the Normal 

Cost for the Plan Year. 

 

Procedure: 

1. After calendar year W-2 Statements have been processed and issued, Payroll will 

create the year-end Pension Data files. 

2. Accounting and Human Resources will work to develop the pension data files for 

each of the two pension plans, defined contribution and defined benefit, using the 

format provided by the actuary. 

3. Accounting will work with the designated pension actuaries and advisors to submit 

the data for the defined contribution and defined benefit plans by agreed upon time-

frames. 

4. The Actuary will notify Northern Inyo Healthcare District of the recommended 

Defined Benefit Plan amount to be funded, but will also separate the amount into 

the Normal Cost and the UAL components.  

Page 32 of 380

32



38115.00001\32949609.2 

 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

Title:  Pension Funding Policy 

Scope: Accounting Department: Fiscal Services 

Source: Chief of Fiscal Services Effective Date: 6/__/2020 

 

  

 

5. We will review and seek Board approval to fund the appropriate amount  as soon 

as possible but not later than the IRS deadline for pension plan funding of October 

15 of the following year.   

 

6. For a twenty-four month period after the Proclamation on Declaring a National 

Emergency concerning the COVID-19 National Emergency was signed by the 

President of the United States on March 13, 2020, the NIHD Board of Directors 

will decide the amount to fund for the Defined Benefit Plan, which amount shall be 

no less than the Normal Cost determined by the Actuary for the Plan Year. 

 

 

 

Committee Approval   Date 

Administration  

Board of Directors       

 

Responsibility for review and maintenance: 

Index Listings: 

Developed: 6/___/2020 

Revised: 

Reviewed: 

Page 33 of 380

33



38115.00001\32948342.2 -1- 

AMENDMENT NO. 5 

TO THE 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN  

 

RECITALS 

A. The NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (“Employer”), adopted the 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN (the “Plan”) for the 

benefit of its Employees and their Beneficiaries, effective as of March 1, 1975, and subsequently 

amended and restated the Plan as of January 1, 2009. 

B. On March 13, 2020, a Proclamation on Declaring a National Emergency concerning 

the Novel Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-19”) Outbreak (“COVID-19 National Emergency”) was 

signed by the President of the United States of America. 

C. The Employer desires to amend the Plan effective as of March 13, 2020 to provide 

flexibility to the Employer in carrying out the funding policy under the Plan as result of the 

COVID-19 National Emergency.  

D. Section 8.1 of the Plan provides that the Employer reserves the right to amend the 

Plan at any time. 

AMENDMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, effective as of March 13, 2020, the Employer hereby amends 

SECTION VII of the NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN to 

add the following before the last sentence of section 7.1:  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for a twenty-four month period after the Proclamation on 

Declaring a National Emergency concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (“COVID-

19”) Outbreak (“COVID-19 National Emergency”) signed by the President of the United 

States on March 13, 2020, the Employer shall make contributions in accordance with the 

funding policy but not less than the normal cost rate for the Plan in accordance with 

section 7522.52 of the California Government Code, as determined by the Actuary for the 

Plan Year. 

Page 34 of 380

34



38115.00001\32948342.2 -2- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused this amendment to be executed on 

June ___, 2020. 

 

 EMPLOYER: 

 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT 

 

By:_________________________________

_ 

Title: _______________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT 

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

 

By:__________________________________

_ 

      Attorneys for Employer 

 

 

Page 35 of 380

35



Page 36 of 380

36



Page 37 of 380

37



Page 38 of 380

38



Page 39 of 380

39



Page 40 of 380

40



Page 41 of 380

41



 
 

 

 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-07 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMENCEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS IN 

CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED ISSUANCE OF BONDS TO REFUND THE 
DISTRICT’S OUTSTANDING NORTHERN INYO COUNTY HOSPITAL 

DISTRICT (INYO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2010, AND 
DESIGNATING A MUNICIPAL ADVISOR, BOND COUNSEL AND A 

PLACEMENT AGENT IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 

 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Northern Inyo Healthcare 

District, a California local health care district (the “District”): 
 
WHEREAS, the District proposes to issue bonds (the “Bonds”) to refund its outstanding 

Northern Inyo County Hospital District (Inyo County, California) Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 
(the “2010 Bonds”), in order to reduce the District’s annual debt service payments with respect to 
the 2010 Bonds ; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate that the Board formally authorize commencement of 

proceedings, to appoint a municipal advisor, bond counsel and a placement agent and to approve 
certain preliminary actions in connection with the execution and delivery of the Bonds; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Board authorizes appropriate officers and officials of the District to proceed 

with the preparation of the necessary documents in connection with the issuance and sale of the 
Bonds, subject to the final approval thereof by the Board at a subsequent meeting. 

 
Section 2. H. G. Wilson Municipal Finance Inc. is hereby designated as municipal advisor 

(the “Municipal Advisor”) to the District in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Bonds. 

 
Section 3. Quint & Thimmig LLP is hereby designated as bond counsel to the District in 

connection with issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
 

Section 4. The Municipal Advisor is hereby authorized to identify a placement agent to the 
District in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds following a competitive 
process. 

 
Section 5. All actions of the officers, agents and employees of the District that are in 

conformity with the purposes and intent of this resolution, whether taken before or after the 
adoption hereof, are hereby ratified, confirmed and adopted. 

 

Page 42 of 380

42



-2- 

Section 6. The Chair of the Board, the Vice Chair of the Board, the Chief Operations 
Officer/Interim Chief Executive Officer, the Secretary of the Board and other appropriate officers 
and officials of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take such action and to execute 
such documents as may be necessary or desirable to effectuate the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 7. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

* * * * * * * * * 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a meeting of the Board 

of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District held on the ____ day of _________, 2020, by 
the following vote: 

 
AYES, and in favor of, Board Members: 
 
NOES, Board Members: 
 
ABSENT, Board Members: 
 
 
 

By    
Secretary 

 

Page 43 of 380

43



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title:  

Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  

Source: CNO Effective Date: 11/1/14 

 

Page 1 of 3 

PURPOSE:  

1. Nursing standards are developed to describe and guide how the nursing care needs of 

patients and/or patient population are assessed, evaluated and met including the 

competency of the staff. 

2. This policy and procedure addresses the systematic process including the Chief Nursing 

Officer (CNO) accountability and responsibility for nursing standard development, 

review, revision, approval and implementation. 

 

POLICY: 
1. The CNO has ultimate authority for the oversight of Nursing Standards. 

2. The CNO in collaboration with the Director’s/Managers of Nursing, District Education 

Coordinator, House Supervisors, Clinical Informatics, develops the structure standards located in 

the Nursing Administration Manual (NAM). 

3. The Directors of Nursing have been delegated the authority to lead the process for the review of 

direct patient care process standards including Policies and Procedures (P&P), Forms, and 

Standards of Practice (delegated and independent).  Prior to implementation assurance of 

consistency with the NIHD Mission, Vision, Values and Goals, evidence based practice, legal and 

ethical considerations and responsiveness to performance improvement and other evaluation 

mechanisms is required. 

4. The Clinical Consistency Committee is responsible for assuring collaboration and involvement 

with other disciplines and seeking Medical Staff Committee approval where necessary (follow 

NIHD Hospital Policy and Procedure) 

5. The DON/Manager is responsible for developing, reviewing and revising Nursing Standards of 

Care (what the patient/family can expect) for their department or patient population (see 

attachment A1 and A2).  Other standards of Care may be developed for patient populations that 

may be care for in greater than one department i.e. Care of the Dying. 

6. Nursing Standards of Practice describe activities that define nursing expectations that nursing 

staff perform to provide the realms of nursing practice (delegated, independent and 

interdependent) to patients and their significant others. 

a. The delegated and independent realms of nursing practice are reflected in the care plans 

developed for the patient’s clinical diagnosis. 

b. The interdependent realms of practice are reflected in the Disease Specific Order Sets. 

7. Interdisciplinary P&P’s (assure one level of care and apply to more than one department) serve as 

the procedure guideline to provide patient care based on the standards of care/practice and 

designated by the scope of who can perform the P&P. 

8. Department and/or Service Line specific P&P’s (assure one level of care and apply to one 

department only or a service line) and are located in the Departments (Structures/Process 

Standards) Manual within the electronic policy application found on the NIHD intranet. 

9. The Hospital Policy and Procedure format is the template utilized for developing all P&P’s.  The 

Policy Steering Committee has oversight of format development utilized within the NIHD policy 

application. 

10. A Nursing Services Overall Position Skills Checklist (based on job description, licensure, 

practice, procedures, certification, and training) is utilized upon hire of all new personnel. 

11. Up to Date is utilized as a reference for all nursing units and specialties in addition to American 

Nursing Association Scope and Standards of Practice for each specialty area.  Additionally, The 

Joint Commission Standards, including elements of performance, are followed. 

12. Job Descriptions reflect broad competency statements of what the employee must know in the 

performance of the employee’s job. 

Page 44 of 380

44



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title:  

Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  

Source: CNO Effective Date: 11/1/14 

 

Page 2 of 3 

a. Performance standards specify what the employee must be able to demonstrate to meet 

the competency statement. 

b. A Job Description Clinical Skills Checklist, utilized for competency validation, exists for 

each position responsible for direct patient care.   

13. Forms (to for downtime) will be developed reflective of the electronic medical record (EMR) that 

reflects the nursing process (delivery of care) for the specific patient population. 

14. Required review or revision of Structures and Process Standards no less than every three years. 

a. Changes in practice based on research, new technology, changing populations, 

performance improvement, risk reduction / safety information will direct the review and 

modification of structures / process standards. 

15. New Process Standards that involve multiple disciplines require collaboration for development. 

16. Structure and Process Standards will be available on the NIHD intranet Policy Manual 

application. 

17. OneSOURCE is a reference for clinical equipment. 

 

Definitions: 

1. Structure Standards: Define the foundation for all the conditions and mechanisms needed to 

operate a nursing system.   

a. Generic Nursing Structure Standards are written plans, policies and/or procedures and are 

located in the Nursing Administration section of the policy manual application.   

b. Department Specific Structure Standards are written plans, policies and/or procedures and 

are located in the Department Specific area within the policy manual application. 

2. Process Standards: Define the actions, knowledge, and skills needed by nursing in the 

delivery of care and what constitutes that care.  Process standards have been categorized into 

five formats: 

a. Policy and Procedures; 

b. Forms; 

c. Standards of Care; 

d. Standards of Practice; and 

e. Job Descriptions 

 

PROCEDURE: 
1. Staff may request a Process Standard Development review or revision working with nursing 

leadership. 

2. Procedures may be utilized Lippincott Procedure Manual in lieu of development of procedure.  

Critical notes applicable to NIHD practice will be included as necessary. 

3. Use of approved clinical reference manuals for nursing procedures not described in the NIHD 

policy manual application is acceptable. 

a. See attachment C; Nursing Services Reference List 

b. All NIHD info-bases will supersede information given in the reference manuals. 

c. Approved Reference Manuals will be located in all nursing departments. 

4. The Clinical Consistency Oversight Committee (CCOC) will oversee the approval of Nursing 

Policy and Procedure.  Anyone developing a draft Policy and Procedure will send the document 

to the CCOC Chair for member oversight.  The CCOC member or designee will request 

additional feedback from risk management, compliance officer and/or other committees for 

approval. 

a. See charter of CCOC listed in policy manual application 

5. The department/ or job specific clinical staff educator will ensure that competency check off is 

completed via one of the list below: 

Page 45 of 380

45



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title:  

Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  

Source: CNO Effective Date: 11/1/14 

 

Page 3 of 3 

a. Use Competency Validation Form to validate skills completion; 

b. Policy Manager Review; 

c. Learning Management System review and testing process 

6. After staff education, the effective date on the Policy Procedure will indicate the Policy and 

Procedure goes into effect.  Until that time, the policy remains in draft. 

 

Review/Revision of Policy and Procedure 

1. Policies and Procedures will have a “source” listed by job role.  This role has responsibility to 

review, revise or recommend archival. 

2. Policies and Procedures will be reviewed every three years with the following considerations: 

a. Is the Policy and Procedure still relevant to clinical practice or patient population at NIH? 

b. Is the Policy and Procedure high risk, problem prone, high/low volume, high cost?  How 

often is the staff reassessed or the competency of the skill if all four criteria are present? 

c. Any ethical of legal concerns? 

d. Does it meet current research or state/national standards? 

e. Consideration of findings from quality assurance/performance improvement and other 

evaluation mechanisms have been reviewed. 

3. Policy and Procedures that involve collaboration with other disciplines shall be developed 

together. 

      4.    Policy and Procedure is maintained via computerize policy manual application.   

 

Other 

1. Every year, each policy is reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

 

REFERENCES: 

1. CAMCAH 2019, TJC Nursing Functional Chapter, NR 02.01.01 and NR 02.03.01 

 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1. OneSource 

2. NIHD Policy & Procedure Development 

3. Nursing Standing Committees 

 

Approval Date 

NEC 7/1/2020 

Board of Directors 10/14 

Last Board of Director review 4/18/18 

Developed: 8/13 

Reviewed: 

Revised: 5/14, 6/2020ta 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 380

46



P
ag

e 
47

 o
f 3

80

47



 

C:\Users\sandyblumberg\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3X2OI1DF\NIHD Board Meeting 071520.docx                                   

1 

NIHD Board Meeting 07/15/20 

Quarterly Report from Pioneer Home Health Care, Inc. 

Ruby Allen RN, Administrator 

 

 

While our June totals are not in yet, we can summarize our May information and 

add some of the June highlights. 
 

Program Summaries 

 

A. Home Health Care 

1. Referrals are up!  In June, home health had 32 referrals – we haven’t 

had this many referrals in a month since 2016.    

2. Through June end, we have provided 929 visits (averaging 155 home 

visits per month)  

3. Because we service from Lone Pine to June Lake, and on to Benton 

(up Highway 6) we are averaging approximately 17 miles per home 

health visit 

4. Present number of active patients = 44.  This is a 100% increase since  

June last year.  And, we served an all-time high of 51 patients at one  

point last month. 

5.  Medicare changed their home health payment system at the beginning 

of 2020.  PHHC has been utilizing the new PDGM reimbursement 

system for home health services for a full 6 months now.  The 

reimbursement rates appear to be better than the previous PPS payment 

system. Billing and accounting for this new payment system however 

is incredibly more time consuming for both our biller and financial 

person, but the fact that we are receiving a bit more for our services is 

very encouraging 

 

B. Hospice Program 

1. Have served 15 hospice patients this year 

2. Average length of stay (LOS) = 39 days 

3. Miles traveled = 3,597 – average 30.74 miles per Hospice visit 

4. Community Bereavement Support Group was cancelled due to 

COVID-19, but will be rescheduled when things improve. However we 

continue to provide bereavement services to the loved ones left behind. 

5. Hoping to restart the volunteer program, and train new volunteers, and 

obtain more community involvement. 

 

Page 48 of 380

48



 

C:\Users\sandyblumberg\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3X2OI1DF\NIHD Board Meeting 071520.docx                                   

2 

 

C. Personal Care Program – privately paid by client 

1. 10,365 hours of attendant care has been provided this year in our 

community, totaling 465 hours per week.  This is a 25% increase over 

last year. 

2. We presently have 25 active clients and 18 caregivers 

3. We have recently changed our advertising in order to recruit more 

caregivers and clients. 

4. Currently we have a waiting list for new clients. 

5. Vet Assist Program: PHHC is now in the process to be listed as a 

contracted agency to provide “Aide and Attendance” for our qualifying 

local veterans. This will benefit our veterans as well as provide 

additional work for the Personal Care Program.  

 

Benefit payment changes 

 

Up until May, we had a small flat rate per employee for health benefits that was 

parallel to NIHD.  When PHHC partnered with the Northern Inyo Hospital 

District, we were able to enroll our employees in a benefit-rich, low deductible and 

low out-of-pocket Blue Shield health plan.  And at the same time, the employee-

paid amount for this great insurance went down considerably per the “parallel” and 

pay rates went up considerably.  After almost a year and a half, we now see that 

PHHC could not sustain all three of these changes at the current level.   

 

In response, the PHHC board agreed to return to our previous employer/employee 

payment split to where the company pays 80% and the employee pays 20% of their 

health/dental and vision benefits. This provides a significant savings to the agency 

in the amount of $16,922.00 over a year.  But these changes also mean that we no 

longer parallel the benefits of NIHD.  Again, the goal of partnering with the district 

was to parallel the benefits in order to attract/retain employees that would be 

retained by a flexible work environment, as well as excellent benefits.  Current 

health insurance package is excellent, and the jump from the flat fee to the 20% 

across the board, was a fair way to reduce the costs of health benefits for the 

agency but not too significantly high for the employee.  We continue to match pay 

rates/salaries to NIHD. 

 

Grants and Fundraising 

 

PHHC received a $2,300 COVID grant from the Bishop Chamber of Commerce. 

Page 49 of 380

49



 

C:\Users\sandyblumberg\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3X2OI1DF\NIHD Board Meeting 071520.docx                                   

3 

 

 

Also, through various fundraising efforts, $2,100 was raised as well. 

 

The general grant search continues, utilizing a program PHHC purchased many 

years ago.  It expires early August so we are gathering data on all appropriate 

foundations, potentially interested in working with us.  We have one person 

dedicated to the search, with a focus on rural and frontier community needs.  

Previous Administrator, Pat West, is working as senior advisor and will be 

involved in writing the inquiry letters in which she has experience.  We are also 

looking for seed money to cover thrift shop startup costs as per our strategic plan 

from 2019.   

 

CARES (Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act) monies  

($43, 966.30) were received in April.  We have sent the required acknowledgement 

that we received the funds. Originally there were no strings attached, no 

requirements, however now there appears to be stipulations as to how the money 

can be used, and we are working on how to address this. 

 

In June, we applied at Eastern Sierra Community Bank and were approved for a 

low interest Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan originally in the amount of 

$343,706.20, which has since been recalculated to $290,951.00.  This money is 

specifically designated to help with payroll expenses, taxes, employee benefits, 

mortgage interest and utilities during the next 2.5 months.  We have begun to keep 

very detailed records on how this money is being spent so we can qualify for 

forgiveness of this loan.   

 

At the beginning of June, we had an incident with an employees’ mobile payroll 

deposit, where copies were made of the payroll check by unknown suspects and 

several attempts were made to pass counterfeit checks. This issue was caught 

promptly and the payroll account has been closed.  All employees were instructed 

in financial safety/integrity when using mobile banking. No loss was incurred.   

 

At the end of May: 

Home Health Program shows a net of $145,239.80  

Hospice Program shows a net of $27,361.86 

Page 50 of 380

50



 

C:\Users\sandyblumberg\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3X2OI1DF\NIHD Board Meeting 071520.docx                                   

4 

Personal Care Program shows a net loss of $40,529.76.  This particular program 

has continually shown a loss due to the paralleling of salaries with NIHD in 

September 2018. 

Overall, the entire agency shows a net income of $132,071.90 for 2020 January 

through May. 

 

Employee Changes 

 

PHHC is in need of a Biller/Office, Clerical Person, MSW Social Worker, PT or 

PTA per diem, and CNA’s interested in taking our 40 hour class in order to qualify 

for CHHA (Certified Home Health Aide) a requirement to work in the home arena.   

We were able to fill the Hospice Chaplain role with Patrick Thompson, for which 

we are grateful.  

 

We have been working without the clinical supervisor role saving $98,000.00 a 

year, and have fully retired Pat West of her administrator role.  However, she is 

now serving in her new role as the Senior Advisor, and will also fill the Corporate 

Compliance role per PHHC Board direction at the May PHHC Board meeting.  

Still working on SIHD contract for contracted rehab services in the Southern Inyo 

area.  

 

Strategic Plan for 2019 - 2024 

 

Staff reviewed the plan and it was noted that significant progress has been made in 

meeting goals initially set in 2019.  

 

General Community Reach Out 

 

Have improved communication with Mammoth Hospital, General Population 

Health, and Family Med Clinic for home health and hospice referrals. 

 

Have also been working with SIHD and increased communication with the 

Southern Inyo Hospital Clinic, with education re Home Health and Hospice 

referrals. 

 

Have met with the director of nursing and discharge planner at Bishop Care 

Center, and PHHC is now receiving regular referrals for Home Health Care from 

the facility.   

Page 51 of 380

51



 

C:\Users\sandyblumberg\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\3X2OI1DF\NIHD Board Meeting 071520.docx                                   

5 

 

Sending out educational materials about our services to the various rehab and acute 

care settings in Gardnerville, Minden, Carson City and Reno in an effort to provide 

our services to those in our community that have been provided out of area 

services, and are now returning home.   

 

We continue to work well in collaboration with NIH Care Coordination and 

Discharge planning, to provide safe transitions of care.  

 

Overall, PHHC is optimistic about the future and appreciative of our past, current 

and continuing partnership with NIHD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52 of 380

52



Page 53 of 380

53



Page 54 of 380

54



Page 55 of 380

55



Page 56 of 380

56



Page 57 of 380

57



Page 58 of 380

58



Page 59 of 380

59



Page 60 of 380

60



Page 61 of 380

61



Page 62 of 380

62



Page 63 of 380

63



Page 64 of 380

64



Page 65 of 380

65



Page 66 of 380

66



Page 67 of 380

67



Page 68 of 380

68



Page 69 of 380

69



Page 70 of 380

70



Page 71 of 380

71



Page 72 of 380

72



Page 73 of 380

73



Page 74 of 380

74



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of  6 

      

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Jean Turner, District Board 

Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Jean Turner, Chair 

Robert Sharp, Vice Chair   

Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 

Topah Spoonhunter, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

    Officer 

Tracy Aspel RN, BSN, Chief Nursing Officer  

Will Timbers MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer  

Stacey Brown MD, Chief of Staff (via online conference) 

Vinay Behl, Interim Chief Financial Officer (via online conference) 

Keith Collins, District Legal Counsel 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Ms. Turner announced at this time persons in the audience may speak on 

any items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the 

District Board. Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda, and speakers will be 

limited to a maximum of three minutes each. The Board is prohibited 

from generally discussing or taking action on items not included on the 

agenda for the meeting. Public comments were heard from the following: 

- Michelle Scott 

- Kaylyn Rickford 

- Samantha Bumgarner 

- Heleen Welvaart 

- Eva Judson 

 

REQUEST FOR 

PROPOSALS FOR 

AUDIT SERVICES 

 

 

Interim Chief Financial Officer Vinay Behl reported the District is in 

process of renegotiating various contracts, including the contract for audit 

services. Mr. Behl provided an overview of the projected costs of services 

from the following submitted proposals: 

- Eide Bailly 

- BKD 

- Wipfli 

- MossAdams 

 

It was moved by Topah Spoonhunter, seconded by Robert Sharp, and 

unanimously passed to approve the selection of Eide Bailly for the 

provision of audit services to the District. 

 

REQUEST FOR 

PERMANENT CHIEF 

MEDICAL OFFICER 

POSITION AT NIHD 

Interim Chief Executive Officer Kelli Davis called to attention a request 

for a permanent Chief Medical Officer (CMO) for the District. The CMO 

would be an integral part of the executive team and would form a strong 

conduit between administration and the medical staff. Dr. Brown, Chief of 

Staff, reported that the medical staff is supportive of the CMO role.  

Page 75 of 380

75



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of  6 

Concerns from board members were heard regarding the financial impact 

of a permanent CMO position. It was moved by Robert Sharp, seconded 

by Mary Mae Kilpatrick and unanimously passed to table this item for 

addition to the next Special Board Meeting agenda at which time the 

2020-2021 budget will be presented.  

 

TUITION 

REIMBURSEMENT 

POLICY AND 

PROCEDURE 

Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel called to attention an update to the 

Tuition Reimbursement policy and procedure which would allow 

benefitted employees (full-time and part-time) of the District to apply for 

tuition reimbursement. It was moved by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, seconded 

by Jody Veenker, and unanimously passed to approve the policy for 

approval as presented.  

 

AED (AUTOMATED 

EXTERNAL 

DEFIBRILLATOR) 

PURCHASE 

Tracy Aspel presented to the Board of Directors a request for the purchase 

of two Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) for the Joseph House 

and the Birch Street Annex District properties. It was recommended that 

the request for purchase of the AEDs be presented to the NIHD 

Foundation Board and the Auxiliary for possible funding. It was moved 

by Robert Sharp, seconded by Jody Veenker, and unanimously passed to 

table this item. 

 

RETURN ON 

INVESTMENT 

ANALYSIS 

COMMITTEE UPDATE 

Vinay Behl presented to the Board a summary sheet of the clinical and 

administrative service lines and contracts that are currently under review 

by the Return on Investment Analysis Committee for their cost to the 

district, as well as the proposed action plans to address the listed items.  

 

Tracy Aspel reported that the committee determined the NEST program 

will be discontinued due to its annual loss of $250,000. Moving forward, 

the community can expect to receive these newborn support services from 

the District’s pediatric providers in the outpatient clinic setting. 

 

Comments from the audience were heard regarding the closing of the 

NEST program.  

 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

REVIEW AND 

APPROVAL PROCESS 

Ms. Davis called to attention the proposal for the Board agenda item 

review and approval process and policy. It was moved by Jody Veenker, 

seconded by Topah Spoonhunter, and unanimously passed to approve the 

policy and forms as presented.  

 

CEO SIGNATURE 

AUTHORITY 

Ms. Davis reported that she and the Compliance Office are reviewing past 

meeting minutes from the Board of Directors to determine whether the 

CEO had been previously granted signature authority on behalf of the 

Board. More information will be presented after further review.  

 

REQUEST FOR SPECIAL 

BOARD MEETING  

Ms. Davis proposed the scheduling of a Special Board meeting for the 

review of the District operating and capital budget for 2020-2021. Mary 

Mae Kilpatrick further requested that the budget review include 

information pertaining to expenditures made by the Board of Directors. It 

Page 76 of 380

76



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of  6 

was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously 

passed to approve the scheduling of a Special Board meeting on 

Wednesday, June 24, 2020 at 5:30pm.  

 

SOUTHERN INYO 

HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT AND 

NORTHERN INYO 

HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT PEDIATRICS 

AND ORTHOPEDIC 

SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

Ms. Davis called to attention the agreement between Southern Inyo 

Healthcare District (SIHD) and Northern Inyo Healthcare District for the 

provision of pediatric and orthopedic services signed on February 11, 

2020 by former NIHD CEO Kevin S. Flanigan, MD and SIHD CEO Peter 

Spiers. It was reported that there are some concerns in the District’s 

capacity to provide these services on a regular basis.  

PEPRA PLAN – 

REQUEST FOR REFUND 

OF PLAN 

CONTRIBUTIONS TO 

KEVIN FLANIGAN, MD 

AND DISCUSSION OF 

FUTURE OF PEPRA 

PLAN 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously 

passed to approve the addition of this agenda item as it was found that 

there was a need to take immediate action on this item and the need arose 

after the posting of the Board agenda. 

 

Ms. Davis reported that former CEO Kevin S. Flanigan, MD submitted a 

request for a refund of his PEPRA plan contributions in the total of 

$57,000. Comments from Dr. Kevin Flanigan were heard. It was moved 

by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously passed to 

approve the request for refund of plan contributions.  

 

Additionally, it was recommended by the Board that the CEO Search 

Committee investigate whether the continuation of a PEPRA plan is 

considered best practice for the future recruitment of a CEO. 

 

REPORTS 

 

BUILDING 

SEPARATION 

CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT UPDATE 

The following reports were presented:  

 

Luis with Columbo Construction reported that all demolition has been 

completed with the building separation and they are now in the 

reconstruction process. It is anticipated that the District’s milestone will 

be met on time to keep the District in compliance with its plan. 

 

GOVERNANCE 

CONSULTANT UPDATE 

Ms. Turner reported the Board is moving forward with scheduling a 

meeting with Dr. Rice. Board members discussed the preferred venue of 

the meeting. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER SEARCH 

UPDATE 

Ms. Veenker reported on the search committee’s initial meeting, in which 

the committee determined the following:  

- A survey for community and staff engagement will be drafted and 

distributed. 

- The District will post the position on its website in addition to 

opening a search with the executive search firm WittKieffer. 

Applications submitted directly to the District will be also vetted 

by WittKieffer’s process in order to maintain consistency. It was 

recommended that the search committee discuss pricing options 

Page 77 of 380

77



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 4 of  6 

with WittKieffer in the event that the selected candidate was 

recruited through the District’s internal means.  

 

CHIEF OF STAFF 

REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief of Staff Stacey Brown, MD presented to the Board of Directors the 

Medical Staff Officers and Service Chiefs for the 2020-2021 Medical 

Staff year, which are as follows: 

- Chief of Staff: Stacey Brown, MD 

- Vice Chief of Staff: Charlotte Helvie, MD 

- Immediate Past Chief of Staff: William Timbers, MD 

- Chief of Emergency Room Service: Sierra Bourne, MD 

- Chief of Medicine/Intensive Care Service: Nickoline Hathaway, 

MD 

- Chief of Obstetrics: Martha Kim, MD 

- Chief of Pediatrics: Charlotte Helvie, MD 

- Chief of Radiology: Edmund Pillsbury, MD 

- Chief of Surgery: Robbin Cromer-Tyler, MD 

- Member-at-Large: Anne Wakamiya, MD 

 

Dr. Brown additionally reported the Medical Executive Committee 

recommends approval of the following Medical Staff appointments:  

1. Gregory Gaskin, MD (emergency medicine) – provisional active 

staff 

2. Timothy Brieske, MD (family medicine) – provisional active staff 

 

It was moved by Robert Sharp, seconded by Jody Veenker, and 

unanimously passed to approve all Medical Staff appointments as 

requested. 

 

Dr. Brown reported as per the approved Telemedicine Physician 

Credentialing and Privileging Agreement, and as outlined by 42CFR 

482.22, the Medical Staff has chosen to recommend the following 

practitioners for Telemedicine privileges relying upon Adventist Health’s 

credentialing and privileging decisions: 

1. Armand Rostamian, MD (cardiology) – telemedicine staff 

2. Diana Havill, MD (psychiatry) – telemedicine staff 

 

It was moved by Jody Veenker, seconded by Robert Sharp, and 

unanimously passed to approve all telemedicine staff appointments as 

requested. 

 

Dr. Brown also stated the Medical Executive Committee recommends 

approval of the following Staff Category Change after careful review and 

consideration: 

1. Ruhong Ma, DO (internal medicine) – change from locums to 

provisional active staff. Privileges valid through 12/31/2021. 

 

It was moved by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, seconded by Jody Veenker, and 

unanimously passed to approve the staff category change as presented. 

Page 78 of 380

78



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 5 of  6 

Dr. Brown additionally reported the Medical Executive Committee 

recommends approval of the following Medical Staff resignation: 

1. Peter Bloomfield, MD (emergency medicine) – active staff – 

effective 5/26/2020 

 

It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and unanimously 

passed to approve the resignation of Dr. Bloomfield.  

 

Dr. Brown reported following careful review, consideration, and approval 

by the appropriate Committees, the Medical Executive Committee 

recommends approval of the following District-wide Policies and 

Procedures: 

1. Pharmacy Downtime Procedure  

2. Opioid Sedation Scale  

3. Opioid Administration  

4. Pain Assessment and Documentation  

5. Scope of Service Acute/Subacute  

6. Telemetry Criteria Guideline  

7. MRI Safety  

8. Code Blue Procedure – Code Blue Team  

9. Cardiac Stress Test Protocol and Procedure 

 

It was moved by Ms. Veenker, seconded by Mr. Spoonhunter, and 

unanimously passed to approve all District-wide Policies and Procedures 

as presented with the exception of the Telemetry Criteria Guideline, 

which was not included in the Board agenda packet for review. 

 

Dr. Brown additionally presented the annual approval of the Radiology 

Critical Indicators for 2020 by the Radiology department. It was moved 

by Mr. Sharp, seconded Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously passed to 

approve the critical indicators as presented.  

 

Lastly, Dr. Brown called to attention the changes made to the Internal 

Medicine core privilege form approved by the Medical Executive 

Committee. It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 

unanimously passed to approve the revised Internal Medicine core 

privilege form as presented.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Ms. Turner called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting, which 

contained the following items: 

1. Approval of minutes of the May 20, 2020 regular meeting 

2. Approval of minutes of the May 28, 2020 special meeting 

3. Compliance Department quarterly report 

4. Policy and Procedure Annual Approvals 

 

It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Veenker, and unanimously 

passed to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-3 as presented and to table the 

Policy and Procedure Annual Approvals (Item 4).  

Page 79 of 380

79



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                         June 17, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 6 of  6 

BOARD MEMBER 

REPORTS 

 

Ms. Turner then asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished 

to report on any items of interest. Comments were heard from: 

 

- Vice Chair Robert Sharp, thanking everyone for their service 

during COVID-19 and reminding all listeners that free COVID-19 

testing is now available through Project Baseline.  

- Secretary Jody Veenker, congratulating the Owens Valley Career 

Development Center for obtaining a grant for resiliency training 

and support services for individuals who have had adverse 

childhood experiences. 

- Member-at-Large Topah Spoonhunter, thanking all staff and 

expressing how he looks forward to the Executive Search 

Committee work. 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

At 7:53 pm Ms. Turner announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel, anticipated litigation, significant 

exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2)), 2 cases. 

B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54957(b)), title: Interim Chief 

Executive Officer. 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel, anticipated litigation, significant 

exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2)), Potential privacy breach, Jody DeSousa. 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

At 8:55 pm the meeting returned to Open Session. Ms. Turner reported 

the Board took no reportable action. 

 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 8:55 pm. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jean Turner, Chair 

 

            Attest: ________________________________

                                         Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Page 80 of 380

80



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          June 24, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 1 of 3 

      

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Jean Turner, District Board 

Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Jean Turner, Chair 

Robert Sharp, Vice Chair   

Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 

Topah Spoonhunter, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

    Officer 

Tracy Aspel RN, BSN, Chief Nursing Officer  

Will Timbers MD, Interim Chief Medical Officer  

Vinay Behl, Interim Chief Financial Officer (via online conference) 

Keith Collins, District Legal Counsel 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Ms. Turner announced at this time persons in the audience may speak on 

only items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be 

limited to a maximum of three minutes each. The Board is prohibited 

from generally discussing or taking action on items not included on this 

Notice. No public comments were heard.  

 

REVIEW AND 

APPROVAL OF 

OPERATIONS AND 

CAPITAL BUDGET FOR 

2020-2021 

 

 

Interim Chief Financial Officer Vinay Behl presented an overview of the 

budget preparation process for the 2020-2021 fiscal year, which included 

the following: 

- Review of the 2019-2020 revenues by service department, and the 

projected revenues for 2020-2021, with estimated volumes being 

less than current. 

- Review of revenue by insurance payers for 2019-2020, and the 

2020-2021 projection of reduced expected payments. 

- Review of income statements for the previous, current and next 

fiscal years.  

- Review of the planned capital budget expenditures. 

 

Mr. Behl reported the current 2019-2020 fiscal year is estimated to close 

at $4.2 million in net losses, without accounting for the funding received 

from COVID-19 relief grants. The 2020-2021 fiscal year is projected to 

have higher costs and less revenue, resulting in a $10 million deficit. 

 

Mr. Behl discussed the mitigation plan that is being implemented by the 

executive team to address these budget projections, including assessing 

existing services for cost-savings, considering new services that may 

increase revenue, investigating bond refunding, and applying for 

additional provider relief grants. Mr. Behl expressed his support of the 

existing executive leadership’s ability to implement these measures. 

 

Additionally, Mr. Behl recommended the Board of Directors consider 

postponing the search for a new Chief Executive Officer for twelve 

Page 81 of 380

81



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          June 24, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 2 of 3 

months, which would result in significant cost-savings to the District in 

salaries and benefits alone.  

 

Comments in support of Kelli Davis’ continuance in the Interim Chief 

Executive Officer role were heard from Interim Chief Medical Officer, 

Dr. Timbers, and Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel.  

 

It was recommended by the Board of Directors that leadership reach out 

to the executive search firm, WittKieffer, to cancel the search for a Chief 

Executive Officer. The Board expressed their appreciation of staff’s hard 

work in the budget process and reported they would re-evaluate the status 

of the Interim Chief Executive Officer and Interim Chief Medical Officer 

positions in six months.  

 

Genifer Owens additionally reported that the Board spend for 2019-2020 

was $42,000 for stipends, travel, and conferences. Travel is cancelled for 

the next fiscal year for all of the District, which will result in cost-savings.  

 

Lastly, Mr. Behl provided clarification that the defined benefit plan 

market is very volatile at the moment, and the suspension of the District’s 

contribution to the plan is only temporary. The costs associated with 

contributing to this plan are budgeted for next fiscal year and will 

continue to accrue while the District temporarily suspends payment.  

 

It was moved by Jody Veenker, seconded by Topah Spoonhunter, and 

unanimously passed to approve the 2020-2021 operations and capital 

budgets for approval as presented.  

 

ENGAGEMENT OF HG 

WILSON MUNICIPAL 

FINANCE, INC., 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR, 

FOR REVIEW AND 

CONSIDERATION FOR 

REFINANCING 2010 

BONDS 

Mr. Behl presented a request to approve the appointment of financial 

advisors and to approve a 10-year extension to the term of the 2010 

bonds. The proposed financing scheduled was reviewed, and a timeline 

was presented with the goal of closing the refinancing process by 

September 1, 2020.  

 

It was moved by Robert Sharp, seconded by Jody Veenker, and 

unanimously passed to approve the engagement of HG Wilson Municipal 

Finance, Inc. as financial advisor in refinancing the 2010 bonds.  

 

REQUEST FOR 

PERMANENT CHIEF 

MEDICAL OFFICER 

POSITION AT NIHD 

Interim Chief Executive Officer Kelli Davis presented a request to the 

Board of Directors for the approval of a permanent Chief Medical Officer 

position. It was reported that Dr. Timbers would be willing to serve in the 

role of Interim for an additional twelve months.  

 

It was moved by Robert Sharp, seconded by Jody Veenker, and 

unanimously passed to approve the approval of a permanent Chief 

Medical Officer position for the District. The Board recommended 

reviewing the status of the Interim role in six months, and acknowledged 

that the existing job description may need to be amended in the future as 

Page 82 of 380

82



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          June 24, 2020 

Regular Meeting                       Page 3 of 3 

the major areas of value are identified.  

 

ADJOURNMENT TO 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

At 6:55 pm Ms. Turner announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed 

Session to allow the District Board of Directors to: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel, anticipated litigation, significant 

exposure to litigation (pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2)), 1 case. 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiation, Agency Designated 

Representative: Irma Moisa; Employee Organization: AFSCME 

Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6) 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

At 9:10 pm the meeting returned to Open Session. Ms. Turner reported 

the Board took no reportable action. 

 

ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 pm. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Jean Turner, Chair 

 

            Attest: ________________________________

                                         Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Page 83 of 380

83



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

NOTICE 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

June 26, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 

2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA  
 

 

 
 

 

 

1. Call to Order at 2:00 pm.    

2. In Attendance:  Jean Turner, Mary May Kilpatrick, Robert Sharp, Jody Veenker, Topah 

Spoonhunter, Kelli Davis, Tracy Aspel, Dr. Will Timbers, M.C. Hubbard 

Attendance through Zoom: Dr. Charlotte Helvie, Colleen McEvoy, Sandy Blumberg, Cori Stearns 

3. Public Comment:  No Public Comments. 

4. Governance Training for Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board, was presented via Zoom by Jim 

Rice with Gallagher Associates. 

 Jim presented and reviewed the BOD’s Self-Assessment results 

5. Adjournment: 5:00pm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84 of 380

84



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

NOTICE 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

June 27, 2020 at 8:30 a.m. 

2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA  
 

 

 
 

 

 

1. Call to Order at 8:30am. 

2. In Attendance: Jean Turner, Mary May Kilpatrick, Robert Sharp, Jody Veenker, Topah 

Spoonhunter, Kelli Davis, Tracy Aspel, Dr. Will Timbers, M.C. Hubbard 

Attendance through Zoom: Dr. Charlotte Helvie, Barbara Laughon 

3. Public Comment:  A comment was received from Dr. Helvie regarding physician and Board of 

Directors collaboration.   

4. Part 2 of the Governance Training for Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board was presented by 

Jim Rice with Gallagher Associates.  Discussion included: 

 Position Description – Board Member Election 

 Physician Collaboration 

 Bylaws Review 

 Community Relations 

 Board profiles, Board Education and Role Descriptions 

 Board Orientation, Introductions, Structured On-Boarding, ITS Orientation/Set-Up.Review 

 Governance Website 

5. Adjournment:  11:00am 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85 of 380

85



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          July 6, 2020 

Special Meeting 

Public Records Presentation by Keith Collins 

General Council, Northern Inyo Healthcare District                   Page 1 of 3 

      

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by Jean Turner, District Board 

Chair. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Jean Turner, Chair 

Robert Sharp, Vice Chair   

Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 

Topah Spoonhunter, Member-At-Large 

Kelli Davis MBA, Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating  

Officer 

Tracy Aspel RN, BSN, Chief Nursing Officer  

Keith Collins, District Legal Counsel 

 

 

 

Ms. Turner announced at this time persons in the audience may speak on 

only items listed on the Notice for this meeting, and speakers will be 

limited to a maximum of three minutes each. The Board is prohibited 

from generally discussing or taking action on items not included on this 

Notice.  

 

1.  Zoom Participant, Tracy:  In response to requests for compensation, 

are Fair Market Value studies public record?  Keith believes this 

information is clearly public record.   

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 

PRESENTATION,  

KEITH COLLINS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Counsel, Northern Inyo Healthcare District, Keith Collins 

presented information on Public Records, which included the following: 

- Introduction to CPRA – California Public Records Act.  Enacted 

in 1968, discussed the history of the act.   

- CPRA Government Code 6250.  A balance between right to 

privacy and the right to know.   

- Discussed the 2 different rights of access; right to inspect, right to 

copy 

- Discussed equal access to Government records 

- Definitions were given for:  

1.  Public Records 

2.  Writing 

3.  Relating to the Conduct of Public Business 

4.  Prepared, Owned, Used or Retained 

5.  Specifically Identified Records 

6.  Person 

7.  Member of the Public 

8.  Local Agency 

       -    Reviewed 8 areas of Agency Obligations 

       -    Discussed Types of Requests, Right to Inspect Records, Right to 

            Copy Public Records, Form of the Request, Purpose of Request   

            Irrelevant, Procedures/Guidelines, Timing of the Response,  

Page 86 of 380

86



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                          July 6, 2020 

Special Meeting 

Public Records Presentation by Keith Collins 

General Council, Northern Inyo Healthcare District                   Page 2 of 3 

         Response Time Frame (Time Extension), Timing of Disclosure,  

         Agency Obligations, Disclosing Electronic Records, Affidavits,  

         Agency Obligations, Inspection Fees, Grounds for Withholding  

         Records (Section 6254 contains a complete list) 

    -    In-depth discussion on Exempted Records, Section 6254 & 6255 

    -    Discussion on Enforcement 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:43pm 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

_________________________________ 

Jean Turner, Chair 

 

            Attest: ________________________________

                                         Jody Veenker, Secretary 

Page 87 of 380

87



Page 88 of 380

88



Page 89 of 380

89



Page 90 of 380

90



Page 91 of 380

91



Page 92 of 380

92



Page 93 of 380

93



Page 94 of 380

94



Page 95 of 380

95



Page 96 of 380

96



Page 97 of 380

97



Page 98 of 380

98



Page 99 of 380

99



Page 100 of 380

100



Page 101 of 380

101



Page 102 of 380

102



Page 103 of 380

103



Page 104 of 380

104



Page 105 of 380

105



Page 106 of 380

106



Page 107 of 380

107



Page 108 of 380

108



Page 109 of 380

109



Page 110 of 380

110



Page 111 of 380

111



Page 112 of 380

112



Page 113 of 380

113



Page 114 of 380

114



Page 115 of 380

115



Page 116 of 380

116



Page 117 of 380

117



Page 118 of 380

118



Page 119 of 380

119



Page 120 of 380

120



Page 121 of 380

121



Page 122 of 380

122



Page 123 of 380

123



Page 124 of 380

124



1

July 15, 2020 Interim Chief 
Medical Officer Report to the 
Board of Directors 

COVID-19 Update 
NIHD’s initial response to, and subsequent precautions, in conjunction with the Inyo 

county health officer, were successful in stemming the broad spread of COVID-19 in 

our community. Out of the 300 hundred plus employees and district staff tested only 

two were found to have antibodies to COVID-19 and these were individuals who were 

already know to have previously contracted the disease. Additionally, the community 

remained relatively spared from the disease and contact tracing and testing has been 

successful in inhibiting spread when a cluster is identified. NIHD put into place multi-

ple provisions to address a possible surge of COVID-19 and the incident command 

team has identified and carried through on literally hundreds of action plans related 

to the pandemic. Despite these early successes the trends around the state and na-

tionally are disheartening. As we move to reopen nothing with regard to the viruses 

pathogenicity or virulence has fundamentally changed and we are seeing marked 

spikes in cases. I am concerned that it is only a mater of time until this trend affects the 

healthcare district directly. In fact, as I write this report on July 1st, I can not help but 

wonder to what degree these predictions will be prescient by the time we convene 

Page 125 of 380

125



2

the July 15th board of directors meeting. At the time of this writing we remain in limit-

ed operations as outlined in the “COVID-19 Operations Action Plan” presented to the 

board in my report on May 20th, 2020. We very likely will need to consider shifting to 

essential operations depending on the impact locally of COVID-19 and the incident 

command has this conversation weekly. While the resurgence of COVID-19 is frighten-

ing I am encouraged by the plans the district has laid out and for a critical access hos-

pital with a finite resource pool I feel we are as ready as possible to meet the stresses 

of a surge. It is paramount however that the community continues to remain vigilant 

and practices both masking and social distancing and I would ask the board for your 

help in community outreach and education to this effect.  

COVID-19 Testing 

Access to molecular tests such as PCR for in-house testing continues to be a challenge 

due to high demand and limited supply. We rely on this test for screening admissions, 

surgeries, and other high risk patients. With this shortage we have been able to utilize 

send out molecular testing for scheduled surgeries and outpatient testing and other 

less urgent indications but this has inherent limitations given the 3-5 day turn around 

time. We are also able to provide IgG and IgM antibody serum testing to evaluate for 

exposure to COVID-19. The district has begun offering IgG antibody testing to essen-

tial workers as defined by the State of California. Following an initial round of testing 

we hope to amplify the availability of this test for the benefit of the community more 

broadly. 

Page 126 of 380

126



3

Weekly Press Briefings 

Dr. Stacey Brown and I continue to participate in weekly press briefing on Fridays at 

noon to discuss COVID-19 with local media. This has been well received and provides 

us a venue for supplying the community with accurate information regarding the dis-

ease and updates on NIHD’s operations and services.  

Contract Negotiations 
As noted in my May 20th report to the board I have assumed the responsibility of 

physician contract negotiations. With the uncertainty regarding the CEO role over the 

past several months there are multiple contracts that require urgent attention. I am 

working with the rest of the executive team to address these as quickly as possible.  

Urology Contract 

I have renegotiated the urology contract with Dr. Ercolani’s group, “Elite Robotic Surgi-

cal Consultants”. Under the prior terms the district was losing 120,000$ per year. With 

the renegotiation we expect to initially at least break even and potentially make a 

small profit. ERSC will also now be coming twice monthly for 4 day rotations and will 

be providing scheduled clinic and possibly surgery on both Saturday's and Sunday’s 

while they are on site. It is my hope, as well as Dr. Erconali’s, that with the increased 

visitations we will see increased surgical volumes and thus revenue which will benefit 

both parties.  

Page 127 of 380

127



4

RHC Contacts 

I am working to revise the base RHC physician contracts to include a more significant 

emphasis of productivity and quality. Prior agreements have included a 3% incentive 

for these metrics which has not been sufficiently motivating. My hope is that this revi-

sion will allow for increased earnings for physicians who meet these metrics while also 

generating more revenue for the district and providing better access to primary care 

in the community by encouraging more efficient clinic throughput. For the three 

physicians whose contracts were up for renegotiation on 6/30/20 we have extended 

them through the month of July.  

Dr. Allison Robinson 

Dr. Robinson will be providing coverage in August from the 9th-15th. I have written an 

contract reflecting Dr. Robinsons willingness and interest in per diem surgical cover-

age going forward.  

Recruitment and Staffing 

1. Dr. Tang from Barton Health has joined the hospitalist team part time and 

has thus far been well received.  

2. Dr. Ma has been providing nocturnist coverage and is contracted with the 

district directly. He continues to be well received.  

3. Dr. Engblade will be returning to NIHD full time in august and will be as-

suming the role of hospitalist director. 

Page 128 of 380

128



5

4. Dr. Jesionek has begun applying for privileges to provide full time hospi-

talist coverage. 

5. Dr. Ricci will be joining pediatrics in October. 

6. Dr. O’Neal, a general surgeon in Oakland, CA who is interested in provid-

ing approximately two weeks per month of general surgery coverage and 

assuming Dr. Harness’s breast surgery practice, visited NIHD on 7/5-7/6. 

7. Dr. Plank is a plastic surgeon in Florida with sub specialization in orthope-

dic hand surgery and dermatologic cancers who has been in interested in 

offering services part time in Bishop with a goal of transition to a full time 

practice and relocating to the area. We have been negotiating a contract.  

8. Dr. Zukerman is a general surgeon with sub specialty training in hepatobil-

iary surgery currently working in Kalispell, MT who is interested in relocat-

ing. Will plan a site visit post COVID-19 restrictions.  

9. Dr. Kasia Bartczak is interested in joining our hospitalist team this fall. She 

will do a site visit as soon as COVID-19 restrictions are loosened.  

10. Dr. Gaskin has joined ESEP and began working in the ED in early July. Dr. 

Gaskin has relocated to the are and will be a full time physician.  

11. Dr. Brieske has joined the RHC team.  

Bronco Clinic 
I have been working with WIFPLI to enroll the bronco clinic as a licensure exempt clin-

ic (1206b) which would allow us to bill for services including mediCal, family PACT, 

and commercial insurance.  

Page 129 of 380

129



6

Provider Based Clinic Evaluation  
Currently the NIA clinics are not licensed through the hospital and therefore the hos-

pital is unable to collect a facility fee for services. WIPFLI gave a initial rough estimate 

that this could be a loss of revenue amounting to 1-2 million per year. The largest bar-

rier to changing this designation is that the clinics need to be OSHPD level 3 compli-

ant. Colombo construction has been asked to provide the district with a proposal for 

evaluating the NIA clinics for OSHPD level 3 compliance at which point a ROI will be 

completed to determine the cost effectiveness of transitioning to provider based hos-

pital licensed clinics.  

Marriage Family Therapist 
When a new service line is offered through a RHC there is the option to renegotiate 

mediCal reimbursement rates for the entire clinic, not just that services line. A MFT 

and Dental hygienist are two services that result is a compensatory rate renegotiation, 

meaning mediCal can not deny the renegotiation request. Currently we are reim-

bursed around 274$ per RHC visit and it cost the district 410$ per visit. A rate renego-

tiation may help us to make up some of this difference. To this end we are attempting 

to hire a MFT to begin work at the RHC prior to the end of July. The district needs to 

demonstrate one fiscal year of MFT services to compel a rate renegotiation. In addi-

tion to the rate renegotiation this is also a beneficial service to the community and can 

be billed at the RHC rate.  

Page 130 of 380

130



7

Coding and Billing Audit  
The executive team has been exploring the need for a coding and billing audit. From 

a clinical standpoint this would be helpful to ensure that our providers are coding ap-

propriately so that we maximize charges for services provided while avoiding fraud. 

This is a challenge for providers as it is not taught as part of medical education and is 

generally “learned on the job”. I suspect better eduction regarding coding for 

providers and a closer relationship between the coding team and providers is an area 

for increased revenue.  

OR Block Schedule 
I have been working with the surgery team to craft a block schedule for operative time 

for each surgical specialty. The goal is to minimize inefficiencies and cost while still 

providing each surgeon with ample and predictable OR time. Prior practices had al-

lowed for frequent use of two OR’s for convenience rather than necessity. This result-

ed in increased costs due to excess staffing needs. 

Respectfully, 

Will Timbers, MD 

Page 131 of 380

131



July 2020 Board Meeting 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Annual Review 

 

 

1. Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

2. Business Associate Agreements 

3. California Public Records Act Information Requests 

4. Communicating Protected Health Information via E-mail 

5. Disclosures of PHI over the Telephone 

6. Employee Access to His or Her Own PHI 

7. Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy 

8. Sending Protected Health Information by Fax 

Page 132 of 380

132



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 30, 2018 

 
 

 

PURPOSE:  Establishes requirements for auditing access to confidential information 

including protected health information in accordance with Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District (NIHD) policy and state and federal regulations. 
 

Definitions: 

 
Workforce:  Persons whose conduct, in the performance of their work for NIHD, is 
under the direct control of NIHD or have an executed agreement with NIHD, whether or 
not NIHD pays them. The Workforce includes employees, NIHD contracted and 

subcontracted staff, NIHD clinically privileged Physicians and Allied Health 
Professionals (AHPs), and other NIHD health care providers involved in the provision of 
care of NIHD’s patients. 
 

Confidential Information - protected health information (confidential medical 
information), workforce and employee health information, and proprietary information 
related to providers, financial data, trade secrets, business information, information 
protected by law and any other information pertaining to NIHD unless specifically 

designated as not confidential. Proprietary information is generally confidential 
information that is developed by the District as part of its business and operations. Such 
information may include, but is not limited to, the business, financial, marketing, and 
contract arrangements associated with District services and products. It also may include 

computer access passwords, procedures used in producing computer or data processing 
records, Personnel and medical records, and payroll data. Other proprietary information 
may include management know-how and processes; District business and product plans 
with outside vendors; a variety of internal databases, and copyrighted material, such as 

software. (Information published by governmental agencies or the NIHD Board of 
Directors on public sites is not considered confidential information in the form in which it 
is supplied and published. NIHD is governed by and complies with all freedom of 
information laws, such as the California Public Records Act and the Freedom of 

Information Act.) 
 
Covered Entity – (for the purpose of this policy) a healthcare provider, a health plan, or 
a healthcare clearinghouse who transmits any health information in electronic form. 

 
Minimum Necessary - covered entity must make reasonable efforts to limit the use, 
disclosure, and/or request for protected health information, and other confidential 
information to the minimum necessary (lowest amount) to accomplish the intended 

purpose of the use, disclosure, or request. 
 
Need-to-Know - access to only the data he or she needs to perform a particular function 
(role based access). 

Page 133 of 380

133



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 30, 2018 

 
 

 

 

Protected Health Information (PHI) - individually identifiable health information that 
is transmitted or maintained in any form or medium, including electronic PHI. 
 
Electronic Protected Health Information or ePHI: Is PHI that is transmitted by 

electronic media or is maintained in electronic media. For example, ePHI includes all 
data that may be transmitted over the Internet, or stored on a computer, a CD, a disk, 
magnetic tape, jump drive (USB) or other media. 
 

Breach - the unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI and/or 
confidential information which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI or other 
confidential information. 
 

POLICY:  
Access to information systems is granted on a need-to-know basis and is based on one’s 
role with NIHD.  
 

Audits will be performed which evaluate whether information accessed was based on 
“minimum necessary” and “need-to-know” principles and standards and appropriate 
corrective action is taken as applicable. 

 

AUDIT TYPES:  
 

1. Routine Audits  – Routine audits can include but are not limited to: 
 

Audit Description 

Same Last Name Workforce who access the record of a patient with the 
same last name  

Same Department Workforce who access the record of a co-worker who 

works in the same department 
Workforce Hospital 

Admission  

When a Northern Inyo Healthcare District  employee is 

admitted to the hospital as a patient 

Confidential Document Workforce who access “confidential” documents 
New Workforce Member All access made by new workforce members are audited 

prior to the end of their 90 day introductory period 

High Profile Individual The patient is a newsworthy individual 
 

 
2. Audits for Specific Cause – A request to audit for cause may come from various 

sources including but not limited to: 
a. Administration 

Page 134 of 380

134



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 30, 2018 

 
 

 

b. Human Resources 

c. Department Director/Manager 
d. Board of Directors 
e. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement (QAPI) professionals 
f. Security Officer 

g. Patient or representative 
h. Community member  

 
 

Audits for specific cause are conducted in all systems applicable to services provided 
at NIHD.  
 
 

Causes or reasons for specific audits include but are not limited to: 

 

Audit Description 

Internal Concern Concern is expressed by a co-worker, Administration, 
Department Manager, Security Officer or other user  

Patient Complaint Patients request an audit of access to their medical 
record  

Employee Family Member 
Admission 

When an workforce member’s family member is 
admitted as a patient 

Restricted Information 
Patients 

Users who access a patient’s record who requests 
restricted access 

Follow-Up Workforce who have been subject to corrective action(s) 
for accessing records inappropriately 

Disciplined Workforce Workforce who have been disciplined for accessing 

records inappropriately 
 

3. Random Audits – Random audits may be performed on clinical systems and may 
be done to determine clean-up of inactive users. 

 

Audits Investigated and Evaluated  

 
1. The Compliance Department will review the audit results for potential breaches of 

patient privacy based and confidential information on “minimum necessary” and 
“need-to-know” principles. When questionable access is discovered on the audit 

report: 
 

a. A member of the Compliance Department will meet with the workforce 
member requesting information and an explanation for accessing the 

Page 135 of 380

135



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 30, 2018 

 
 

 

patient or other information. For workforce members covered by a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), any meeting will conform to the 
MOU’s process. If further information is required based on the 
information received, meetings with additional workforce may occur. 
Follow up with any findings will be done with relevant workforce 

member(s). 
 

b. If the audit findings reveal, as determined by the Compliance/Privacy 
Officer, activity that appears to constitute a breach of confidentiality, audit 

and investigation results for disciplinary determination will be reported to, 
at a minimum, the following:  

 
i. Human Resources and/or the workforce members’ department 

manager/supervisor. 
ii.  State and/or Federal agencies, in accordance with current law. 

iii.  For each breach, the department manager/supervisor shall follow 
up with appropriate corrective action(s) as applicable to each 

finding and report such actions taken to the Compliance 
Department. 

iv. Department manager/supervisor shall submit copies of all 
documents for workforce corrective action(s) to the Compliance 

Department and the Human Resources department. 
 

Audit Record Disposition and Retention 
 

1. Audit reports are confidential documents. Copies of audit reports will be shared 
internally with Administration and management as necessary, and disclosed as 
required by law or for other business operations.  
 

2. Audit for specific cause outcomes may be communicated to the requestor via mail 
or telephone, as determined by the Compliance/Privacy Officer. 
 

3. Audit results will be retained according to state and federal regulations.  

 

 

Availability and Retention of Documents  

 

1. Audit documents will be made available to appropriate workforce members, as 
needed for review, discussion, and appropriate corrective action per NIHD policy 
and any applicable MOU. 

Page 136 of 380

136



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 30, 2018 

 
 

 

2. Audit documents will be made available to state and federal investigators upon 

request. 
3. Audit documentation shall be maintained for no less than three (3) years. 
4. Policy documents will be retained for no less than six (6) years from either the 

creation date or the last effective date, whichever is longer. 

 

 

REFERENCES: 
1. 45 CFR Part 164.308(a)(8) – Administrative Safeguards 

2. 45 CFR Part 164.312 (a)(1) – Technical Safeguards 

3. 45 CFR Part 164.308(a)(1)(ii)(D) – Administrative Safeguards 

4. 45 CFR Part 164.312(b)– Administrative Safeguards 

5. 45 CFR Part 164.316 – Policies and procedures and documentation requirements 

6. TJC Standard IM.01.01.01 

7. TJC Standard IM.02.01.01 

8. TJC Standard IM.02.01.03 

9. TJC Standard PI.03.01.01 

 

Committee Approval Date 
Compliance Committee 4/5/2018 

Administration 4/10/2018 

Board of Directors 4/18/2018 

Last Board Review 05/15/2019 

 
Developed: 12/10/2013 KH 
Revised: 9/1/2017, 3/29/2018PD 

Reviewed: 12/16/15, 04/29/2019 

Supersedes: 
 

Page 137 of 380

137



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Business Associate Agreements 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 10/1/2017  

 
 

 

PURPOSE: 
 

To establish guidelines for Northern Inyo Healthcare District to identify those 
relationships which meet the HIPAA definition of a “business associate” and provide 
direction on the process by which a business associates agreement will be established.  
 

DEFINITIONS: 
 
Business Associate (BA): an individual or entity, who is not a member of Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District’s workforce, who performs functions or activities on behalf of, or 

provides services to, NIHD that involve access by the business associate to PHI 
 
Business Associate Agreement (BAA): a written contract with the business associate that 
establishes specifically what the business associate has been engaged to do and requires 

the business associate to comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules’ 
requirements to protect the privacy and security of protected health information 
 
Covered Entity (CE): health plans, providers of health services, and clearinghouses that 

transmit any health information in electric form; for the purposes of this policy NIHD is a 
“provider” CE 
 
Protected Health Information (PHI): information about health status, provision of health 

care, or payment for health care that is created or collected by a Covered Entity and can 
be linked to an individual (also called Individually Identifiable Health Information) 
 

POLICY: 

 
1. Business Associate Agreements will be established with all Business Associates 

who create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on behalf of Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District.  

 
2. BAAs will meet the applicable requirements of 45 CFR § 164.504(e). 

 
3. BAAs will be revised and re-signed as laws and regulations governing BAAs are 

updated and implemented by the Federal Government. 
 

4. Departments currently receiving services from the Business Associate will, in 
collaboration with the Privacy Officer, identify Business Associates.  

 
5. The Privacy Officer or Chief Executive Officer may execute Business Associate 

Agreements. 
 

Page 138 of 380

138



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Business Associate Agreements 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 10/1/2017  

 
 

 

 

PROCEDURE: 

1. For any new contractual agreements to be entered into by the District, District 
administration will ensure that the Compliance Department is notified to assess 
the need for a BAA. 

 

2. The Compliance Department will send the BAA to the correct contact for the BA. 
 

3. Once completed, the fully executed BAA will be maintained as a PDF in the 
Compliance Department electronic files. A copy of the BAA will also be sent to 

the Administration Office to be maintained with the contract for the BA. 
 

4. The Privacy Officer will maintain an up-to-date list of Business Associates for 
compliance reviews and updates as required. 

 

REFERENCES: 
1. 45 CFR § 164 Subpart E 
2. 45 CFR § 164.502(e)(1) 

 

 

 

 

Committee Approval Date 

Compliance Committee  9/5/2017 

Administration  

Board of Directors  05/19/2019 

 

Responsibility for review and maintenance: 

Index Listings: 

Developed:  

Revised: 8/31/2017 

Reviewed: 12/16/15, 4/29/2019 

 
 

 

Page 139 of 380

139



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: California Public Records Act – Information Requests 

Scope: Administrative Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 1/19/16 

 

 

PURPOSE 

This policy establishes guidelines for the employees of Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

(“District”) to follow when there has been a request for information under the California 

Public Records Act.  

 

POLICY 

All California Public Records Act requests for Northern Inyo Healthcare District related 

information are to be referred to the Compliance Officer. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

California Public Records Act – The fundamental precept of the California Records Act is that 

governmental records shall be disclosed to the public, upon request, unless there is a specific 

reason not to do so.  

 

Public Record – Any writing containing information relating to the conduct of the public’s 

business prepared, owned, used, or retained by the entity regardless of physical form or 

characteristics. 

 

EXEMPTIONS FROM DISCLOSURE 

 

Key exemptions include: 

 Preliminary drafts, notes, or memoranda not retained in the ordinary course of business. 

 Records relating to “pending litigation”. Documents that may be withheld under this 

section must be specifically prepared for litigation in which the District is party. 

 Personnel, medical, or similar files where disclosure would constitute an “unwarranted 

invasion of privacy”.  

 Police files, including investigatory or security files compiled by any state or local police 

agency. 

 Real estate appraisals or prospective public supply and construction contracts may be 

withheld until the property is acquired or all of the contract agreements are obtained. 

 Exemptions based on prohibitions of disclosure under federal or state law, including 

provisions relating to privilege. This includes: 

- Attorney-client/attorney work product and doctor-patient privileges 

- “Official Information” privilege governing “information acquired in confidence by a 

public employee in the course of his/her duty and not open, or officially disclosed, to 

the public prior to the time the claim of privilege is made”. 

- “Trade Secret” privilege. “Trade Secret” is defined as “information, including a 

formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, or process, that: 

(1) Derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally 

known to the public or to other persons who can obtain economic value from its 

disclosure or use; and (2) Is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the 

circumstances to maintain its secrecy. 

- Any other state or federal law protecting records, including HIPAA, FERPA, etc. 

 The “Catch-all” or “Balancing Test” 

Page 140 of 380

140



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: California Public Records Act – Information Requests 

Scope: Administrative Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 1/19/16 

 

 
- Is applied to protect records, even when there is no other exemption that would 

apply, where “on the facts of the particular case the public interest served by not 

making the record public clearly outweighs the public interest served by disclosure of 

the record”. 

- Includes the “Deliberative Process” privilege, to protect candid internal pre-

decisional deliberations. 

- Includes “burdensomeness”. A request might be so burdensome, and the public 

interest in the material so small, that the balancing test might allow us to deny the 

request. 

- Balances the public interest in disclosure against the public interest (not strictly the 

District’s interest) in withholding. 

 

PROCEDURE: 
1. Requests to inspect and copy public records should be made directly to the Compliance 

Office. 

2. The District is entitled to review and redact records before producing them to the 

requester.  

3. Public records are open to inspection during the normal business hours of the Compliance 

Office. The “open to inspection” provision does not require that an individual be given 

immediate access to the records upon request. In all cases, the records would first need to 

be located and collected, possibly from multiple locations. 

4. An appointment to inspect records may be necessary under these circumstances. If the 

requester requests access to a large number of documents, the requester may need to 

make additional appointments to complete the document inspection process. 

5. Upon either the completion of the inspection or the oral request of District personnel, the 

person conducting the inspection shall relinquish physical possession of the records. 

6. Persons inspecting District records shall not destroy, mutilate, deface, alter, or remove 

any such records from the District.  

7. The District reserves the right to have District personnel present during the inspection of 

records in order to prevent the loss or destruction of records. 

8. The operational functions of the District will not be suspended to permit inspection of 

records. 

9. The District is required to determine within 10 days (can be extended to 24 days for 

voluminous/complex requests) after receipt of a records request whether or not the 

requested records exist and/or are subject to disclosure, and to notify the person making 

the request of the reasons for that determination. The records themselves are not required 

to be released in 10 days. At the time of making a determination, the District will provide 

a good faith estimate of when the records will be available. 

10. The District is required to “assist the member of the public in making a focused and 

effective request that reasonably describes an identifiable record”. 

11. The District may not consider the identity of the requester or the purpose for the request, 

in making its determination. 

12. The District does not have to create new records or answer questions. The California 

Public Records Act simply requires access and disclosure of existing records. However, 

we are required to extract data from a database upon request. 

Page 141 of 380

141



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: California Public Records Act – Information Requests 

Scope: Administrative Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 1/19/16 

 

 
13. Copies will be provided upon request, at a cost of $0.25 per page for scanned or paper 

copy or $15.00 for USB electronic format. The requester may inspect records at no cost. 

Staff time for searching, collecting, reviewing, and redacting documents, is not 

considered to fall within the “direct cost of duplication”. Pre-payment for all 

copying/scanning, electronic format costs are required before release of public records. 

 

 

 

 

REFERENCES: 

1. California Government Code §6250, 6252(f), 6253.9 

2. “The ABC’s of Privacy and Public Record”, by Maria Shanle 

3. www.thefirstamendment.org/capra.html 

 

Approval Date 

Board of Directors 5/17/2017 

  

Last Board of Directors Review 5/15/19 

Developed: 1/19/2016 

Reviewed: 5/1/2017 

Revised: 5/4/2018, 4/29/19 

Supercedes: 

 

Responsibility for review and maintenance: Compliance Officer 

 

Page 142 of 380

142



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Communicating Protected Health Information Via Electronic Mail (Email) 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: January 17, 2019 

 

 1 

PURPOSE: To describe the procedures governing a workforce member’s use of a Northern Inyo Healthcare 

District (NIHD) electronic mail (email) system. It also defines the steps that must be explained to, and taken 

by NIHD, patients who wish to engage in email with an NIHD workforce member.  

 

DEFINITIONS:  

Access: the ability or capacity to read, write, modify, or transmit information, or otherwise make use of any 

system resource 

Restricted Information: Describes any confidential or personal information that is protected by law or 

policy and that requires the highest level of access control and security protection, whether in storage or in 

transit. This includes PHI (Protected Health Information)/ePHI (electronic protected health information), 

confidential information, and other Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) communication as 

defined in this section. 

 

Electronic Protected Health Information or ePHI: Is PHI that is transmitted by electronic media or is 

maintained in electronic media. For example, ePHI includes all data that may be transmitted over the  

Internet, or stored on a computer, a CD, a disk, magnetic tape or other media. 

Internal Email - is defined as being sent from and delivered to the NIH.org domain (both sender and 

recipient’s email addresses end with “@nih.org”) 

Remote Access: the ability to access Northern Inyo Healthcare District network systems from a remote 

location; this includes home office users, non-Northern Inyo Healthcare District facilities, and business 

associates 

Workforce:  Persons whose conduct, in the performance of their work for NIHD, is under the direct control 

of NIHD or have an executed agreement with NIHD, whether or not NIHD pays them. The Workforce 

includes employees, NIHD contracted and subcontracted staff, NIHD clinically privileged Physicians and 

Allied Health Professionals (AHPs), and other NIHD health care providers involved in the provision of care 

of NIHD’s patients. 

 

 

POLICY:  

1. NIHD does not permit email of unencrypted Protected Health Information (PHI) outside of the 

NIH.org domain. The ONLY exception to this policy is if the patient has specifically requested, in 

writing or an email, the PHI be sent to an email address provided by the patient, in an unencrypted 

email. 

2. PHI may be communicated internally following the procedures as outlined below. 

3. All automatic forwarding, redirection, or other automated delivery or pickup of NIHD email, to 

external destinations is explicitly prohibited. 

 

 

 

Page 143 of 380

143



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Communicating Protected Health Information Via Electronic Mail (Email) 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: January 17, 2019 

 

 2 

PROCEDURE:  
 

1. Communicating PHI via Email internally  

Email of PHI will be permitted, internally, at NIHD if the following safeguards are implemented: 

 

a. NIHD shall use the following safeguards when communicating PHI in or attached to an internal 

email message: 

(1) Do not use auto-forward for NIH.org emails to a private/personal email account. 

(2) PHI should not be transmitted in the subject line of the email message.  

a. This includes the name of the patient or a medical record number. It is acceptable to 

have PHI in the body of the email as necessary for identification purposes for the 

reader. 

b. If you have an attachment, the name of the attachment file will be in the subject line. 

Delete any patient identifier in the subject line. 

(3) The user should verify before sending an email message that he/she has attached the proper 

attachment.  

(4) Before transmitting the email message, users should double-check the message and any 

attachments to verify that no unintended information is included. 

(5) Users who communicate PHI via email will comply with all other NIHD policies and 

procedures including, but not limited to, the Minimum Necessary Policy. 

 

b. Any user who is unsure whether an email message or attachment contains PHI should contact 

his/her supervisor or the HIPAA Privacy Officer before initiating the email communication. 

 

2. Communicating PHI with Patients 

 

a. Patients have the right to request that NIHD communicate with them via email, provided NIHD 

can do so without compromising patient confidentiality. 

b. If a patient requests email communications containing their PHI, the individual receiving the 

request must document patient authorization and the email address provided. NIHD workforce 

MUST inform the patient that unencrypted email is not a secure format for information. It is 

similar to regular mail, someone can open it and get the information. The patient can choose to 

receive communications via encrypted (secure) email, if they prefer. 

 

Email addresses should be read back (including spelling it out) when entering the information in 

the EHR. 

 

A confirmation email should be sent to the address prior to using it to communicate PHI to ensure 

the correct email address is used. Do not send PHI to an unverified email. 

 

 

 

Sample text for verification email: 

 

  

Page 144 of 380

144



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Communicating Protected Health Information Via Electronic Mail (Email) 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: January 17, 2019 

 

 3 

Greetings, 

You have requested communication via email. 

I am sending this email to confirm that I have your email address correct.  I am attempting 

to reach Firstname Lastname. Please reply to this email if it has correctly reached the right 

person. 

 

Additionally, please let me know if you prefer to receive information encrypted (more 

secure, better to protect your private information) or unsecured (which is more like regular 

mail or a postcard). 

 

Respectfully, 

Name of employee 

 

c. Confirmation email should be sent to HIM (Health Information Management) department to be 

added to the patient medical record authorizations. 

d. NIHD workforce members reserve the right to deny a patient’s request to communicate with 

him/her via email, however, the workforce member must forward the patient request to a 

supervisor. 

e. PHI sent to patients shall meet all criteria listed in Section 3, Communicating PHI Via Email 

Externally. 

 

3. Communicating PHI via Email Externally 

a. All email that contains PHI sent to external destinations shall be encrypted prior to delivery, in a 

manner adherent to NIHD Information Technology (IT) Department requirements.  

i. To encrypt (secure) an email containing PHI or sensitive information type SECURE: at 

the beginning of the subject line. The word SECURE must be in all capital letters and 

must be followed by a colon (:). Use caution when replying and forwarding to make 

certain that the SECURE: is at the beginning of the subject line. 

ii. To intentionally send an unencrypted (unsecured) email type NOENCRYPT: at the 

beginning of the subject line. The word NOENCRYPT must be in all capital letters and 

must be followed by a colon (:). Use caution when replying and forwarding to make 

certain that the NOENCRYPT: is at the beginning of the subject line. 

b. The email message will include the following confidentiality notice. This notice is automatically 

added to all emails sent outside the NIH.org domain and does not require sender interaction. 

“This electronic message is intended for the use of the named recipient and may contain 

confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 

hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the contents of this 

message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error or are not the 

named recipient, please notify us immediately by contacting the sender at the electronic 

mail address noted above with a copy to compliance@nih.org and destroy this message” 
 

 

4. Ownership of Electronic Mail 

a. The email systems at NIHD belong to Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

Page 145 of 380

145



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Communicating Protected Health Information Via Electronic Mail (Email) 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: January 17, 2019 

 

 4 

b. NIHD reserves the right to override individual passwords and access the email system at any time 

for valid business purposes including, but not limited to, PHI security investigations or at the 

request of Human Resources. 

 

 

 
 

References: 

1. https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/faq/570/does-hipaa-permit-health-care-providers-to-use-email-to-

discuss-health-issues-with-patients/index.html 

2. 42 CFR 164.522 (b) 

 

 

 

Committee Approval Date 

Administrator 1/14/2018 

Board of Directors 1/16/2018 

Last Board approval 1/15/2020 

 

Developed: July 2013 

Revised:11/9/2018  

Reviewed: 12/16/15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 146 of 380

146

https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/faq/570/does-hipaa-permit-health-care-providers-to-use-email-to-discuss-health-issues-with-patients/index.html
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/faq/570/does-hipaa-permit-health-care-providers-to-use-email-to-discuss-health-issues-with-patients/index.html


NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Disclosures of Protected Health Information Over The Telephone  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date:  12/1/2017 

 
 

PURPOSE: In certain instances, using the telephone to communicate with a patient or to 

respond to requests for a patient’s protected health information (PHI) is necessary or 
more convenient for the patient than communicating via mail or e-mail, or having to 
come to Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) in person. In order to do so while 
maintaining patient privacy and minimizing workforce disclosures to incorrect parties, 

NIHD has certain rules in place which must be followed. 
 
POLICY: Workforce members should attempt to limit, to the extent practical, PHI 
communicated over the phone. When necessary to disclose PHI over the telephone, 

NIHD has procedures that must be followed. 
 

PROCEDURES: 
1. Requests from or disclosures to a caller stating he/she is a patient 

If a caller states he/she is a patient and he/she is requesting PHI about 
himself/herself, the workforce member will provide the PHI when they have 
confirmed the caller is the patient, using two patient identifiers. 

a. The workforce member will, prior to disclosing PHI, ask specific 

questions that could only be answered by the patient. For example, the 
patient’s date of birth, address, father’s name, or mother’s name. 

b. If the workforce member knows the patient and the patient’s voice, and 
recognizes the voice on the telephone as being that of the patient, 

verification with two identifiers shall be used to ensure the workforce 
member is in the correct record. 

c. The workforce member may elect to place a return call to the patient using 
the telephone number documented in the patient’s record rather than 

immediately disclosing the patient’s PHI to a caller initiating the telephone 
conversation. 

 

2. Requests from or disclosures to a caller who is not the patient  
If the caller states he/she is an immediate family member (e.g. father, mother, 
child, or sibling) of the patient, the workforce member will refer to the patient’s 
record for documentation (Authorization for Release of Information) to determine 
what information may be provided to this individual.  

d. If the caller states he/she is a friend, relative, or acquaintance of the patient 
or if the caller is unrelated to the patient (e.g. the patient’s employer, law 
enforcement, or a reporter) the workforce member will: 

i. Not disclose PHI without the patient’s permission; or 

ii.  Provide only directory information about the patient. Directory 
information is defined as: 

1. The patient’s name 
2. The patient’s location 

Page 147 of 380

147



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

COMPLIANCE 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Disclosures of Protected Health Information Over The Telephone  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date:  12/1/2017 

 
 

3. The patient’s condition described in general terms that do 

not communicate specific PHI about the patient ( “good”, 
“stable”, “critical”, etc.) 

 

3. Calls to a patient’s home 

Workforce members may not leave messages regarding treatments or diagnostic 
testing information on a patient’s answering machine. Individuals leaving 
appointment reminders may only provide the name of the provider, the office 
phone number, the date and time of appointment, and/or the location. 

 

4. Documenting disclosures made over the telephone 
If PHI is disclosed to a caller, the workforce member will document the disclosure 
in the patient’s medical record. 

 

Questions 
Questions about disclosure of a patient’s PHI over the telephone should be 
directed to the workforce member’s supervisor or the HIPAA Privacy Officer. 

 
 

 

Approval Date 

Compliance Committee  10/24/2017 

Administrator 11/10/2017 

Board of Directors 11/15/2017 

Last Board of Directors Review 05/15/2019 

 
Developed: July 2013 
Revised:10/20/2017 

Reviewed: 12/16/15, 04/29/2019 

 

Page 148 of 380

148



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Employee Access to His or Her Own Protected Health Information* 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 9/1/2017 

 

PURPOSE: 

To provide all Northern Inyo Healthcare District patients with the same access to 

protected health information.   
 

POLICY: 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District maintains protected health information on each patient 

in either paper or electronic medical record format. Employee access to his or her own 

protected health information is treated in the same manner as that of every patient. 

 

Definitions: 
“Medical Record” means any item, collection, or grouping of information that includes 

protect health information and is maintained, collected, used, or disseminated by or for a 

covered entity. 

 

“Employee” means students, volunteers and any person whose work performance is 

under the direct control of Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

 

“Protected Health Information” (PHI) means individually identifiable health information 

that is transmitted or maintained in any form or medium, including electronic PHI.  

 

“Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act” (HIPAA) means the Standards for 

Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information. This rule includes standards to 

protect the privacy of individually identifiable health information. 

 

 

PROCEDURE: 
1. In order to access his or her own protected health information, an employee must 

follow the regular procedure of the facility. An employee is not permitted to 

access his or her own information by use of clinical information systems or any 

other paper or electronic system. 

 

2. An employee may obtain a copy of his or her own medical record in the Medical 

Records Department following facility policies and procedures. 

 

3. Employee records will be subject to random HIPAA privacy and security audits 

for inappropriate access. 

 

4. Inappropriate access to an employee’s own PHI may result in disciplinary action 

up to and including termination. 

 
 

References: 45 C. F. R. §§160 - 164.524 et seq. (HIPAA) 

California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act –  

Page 149 of 380

149



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Employee Access to His or Her Own Protected Health Information* 

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 9/1/2017 

 
Civil Code § 56-56.16 California Health and Safety Code §§ 123110 - 123130  

Title 22 C.C.R; California Code Regulation §§ 70751(b) and 71551(b) 
 

 

Approval Date 

CEO  

Board of Directors 8/16/17 

Last Board of Directors Review 05/15/19 

 

 

Developed: 5/14 

Revised: 8/1/2017 

Reviewed: 12/16/15 

Supersedes: 

 

Page 150 of 380

150



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy Policies  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance  

Source:  Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 1 

PURPOSE: 

 
To comply with 45 CFR 164.530(e)(1) which requires “a covered entity must have and apply 

appropriate sanctions against members of its workforce who fail to comply with the privacy policies 
and procedures of the covered entity” 
 
POLICY: 

 
Definitions: 

 
“Sanction” means training with documentation in the employee record, disciplinary action or 

termination. 
 
“Workforce” means persons whose conduct, in the performance of their work for NIHD, is under 
the direct control of NIHD or have an executed agreement with NIHD, whether or not NIHD pays 

them. The Workforce includes employees, NIHD contracted and subcontracted staff, NIHD 
clinically privileged Physicians and Allied Health Professionals (AHPs), and other NIHD health care 
providers involved in the provision of care of NIHD’s patients. 
 

“Inadvertent Violation” means an error that results in a breach of privacy made while following 
District policies and procedures. 
 
“Negligent Violation” means a breach of privacy made while incorrectly following or not following 

District policies and procedures. 
 
“Deliberate Violation” means a breach of privacy made while willfully not following District policy. 
 

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means any individually identifiable health information 
regarding a patient’s medical or physical condition or treatment in any form created or collected as 
a consequence of the provision of health care, in any format including verbal communication. 
 

“Unauthorized” means the inappropriate acquisition, access of, use or disclosure of protected 
health information without a direct need to know for medical diagnosis, treatment, or lawful use as 
permitted the California Medical Information Act or any other statute or regulation governing the 
lawful access, use, or disclosure of medical information. (California Health and Safety Code Sec. 2 

1280.15) 
 
“Malicious” means with intent to harm or with intent to gain personally. 
 
Breach Levels by Incident 

 
1. Minor breach  

A Minor Breach is inadvertent and non-malicious in nature.  

Examples include but are not limited to: distributing, emailing or faxing protected health 
information to the wrong individual unintentionally. 

Page 151 of 380

151



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy Policies  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance  

Source:  Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 2 

 
 
 

 
2. Moderate breach 

A moderate breach is negligent in nature. The intent of the violation is unclear and the 
evidence cannot be clearly substantiated as to malicious intent. 

Examples include but are not limited to failing to log off computer systems, failing to check a 
guarantor or insurance provider when registering a patient, failing to check that the provider 
selected for an outpatient order matches the written order presented by the patient, faxing 
protected health information to an unverified fax number, or a pattern of minor violations. 

 

3. Major/severe breach  

A major/severe breach is a deliberate violation that purposefully or maliciously violates a 
patient’s privacy or disregards Northern Inyo Healthcare District policy. 
Examples include but are not limited to: releasing or using data for personal gain, destroying 

or altering data, purposefully accessing or attempting to gain access to patient information 
which the employee has no work related need to access, maliciously attacking or hacking 
District information systems, releasing patient data with the intent to harm an individual or 
the District, or a pattern of repeated moderate violations. 

 
Whistleblower Protection 

a. Neither the District nor any employee of the District may intimidate, threaten, coerce, 
discriminate against, or take other retaliatory action against any individual who reports 
any conduct that is unlawful or otherwise violates professional or clinical standards 
including, but not limited to the reporting of conduct that results in the breach of privacy 

of any patient of Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 
b. Proven violation of this section will result in Immediate Loss of Employment. 

Disciplinary Action 

Disciplinary action, up to and including termination, based on recommended corrective 
actions in Attachment A “Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy – Incident Severity 
Scale”, will be taken for any workforce member for a violation of privacy and security 

policies and procedures. Northern Inyo Healthcare District prohibits the use of District 
property for illegal purposes and for purposes not in support of Civil Code 56.36/Health and 
Safety Code 130200 and 1280.15.  
 

 
 
 

 
 

                                                                                                                    ATTACHMENT A 

Page 152 of 380

152



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy Policies  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance  

Source:  Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 3 

 
Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy – Incident Severity Scale 

Guidelines with recommended corrective actions, once an incident and individual are identified. 

 

  Action Level 
Level Intention of the Individual 

Responsible for the privacy breach 
 

Minor Moderate Major/Severe 

A Inadvertent 

 Inadvertent mistake 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
2 

B 

 

Negligent/Unintentional 

 Carelessness or negligence 

 No known or believed intent 
 

 

2 

 

3 

 

3-4 

C 

 

Intentional 

 Due to curiosity or concern 
 

 

2 

 

3 

 

3-4 

D 
 

Intentional 

 Malicious intent, including accessing 
or use of information in a domestic 
dispute 

 Personal financial gain 

 Willful or reckless disregard of 
policies, procedures or law 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
4 

 
 

 
Action Level: 
 

1. Re-training and/or coaching memo 

 
2. Counseling memo, verbal warning, warning letter, or suspension (length to be 

determined by circumstance) 
 

3. Suspension, or written warning indicating that any further conduct resulting in a breach 
of privacy will result in termination 

 
4. Termination 

 
 

 
 

Page 153 of 380

153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy Policies  

Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance  

Source:  Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 4 

Action Level Modification: 

 
Action level may be modified by the consensus of the Privacy Officer, Human Resources Director, 

and the employee’s manager by considering the following: 
 

1. Previous history or corrective action (level of action may increase based on repeat 
offenses) 

2. Whether or not the individual caused an inadvertent violation based upon a situation or 
operation that the individual did not know caused the breach. 

 

 

References 

1. 45 CFR 164.530(e)(1) 
2. California Health and Safety Code Sec. 2 1280.15 

3. Civil Code 56.36 

4. California Health and Safety Code 130200  

 

 

Approval   Date 

Compliance Committee 10/24/2017 

Administration 11/10/2017 

Board of Directors 11/15/2017 

Last Board of Directors Review 5/15/19 
 

Developed: 
Revised 12/2013 KH, 10/20/2017 PD 
Reviewed 12/16/15, 4/29/2019 
Supersedes  

 
 

Page 154 of 380

154



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sending Protected Health Information by Fax 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 1 

PURPOSE: 
To provide guidance for sending protected health information (PHI) by fax to prevent the occurrence of a 
breach of patient information. 

 

POLICY: 
1. PHI may only be faxed by NIHD personnel who have been trained in this policy. 

 
2. Preprogrammed fax machines shall undergo a fax number verification prior to being released for use 

by staff. Requests for a programmed fax number shall be submitted through the IT Helpdesk ticket 
system. 
 

a. A verification request fax will be sent to each requested fax number for any machine by the 

Compliance department prior to release to staff. 
b. The verification request fax will contain at least the following statement or words of similar 

import:  “This fax verification is intended for _____________. If the intended party has 
received this fax, check here and fax back to _________________. If someone other than the 

intended party has received this fax, check here and fax back to ___________________.” 
c. Once verified, the fax number verification form will be sent to the IT department for 

programming. IT will program and send visual verification to the Compliance Department. 
d. The preprogrammed fax machine will not be released for staff use until all preprogrammed 

fax numbers have been verified in accordance with this section. 
e. Compliance will notify of completion of programming and availability of programmed fax 

button for use. 
 

3. The Compliance Department will be responsible for determining that a preprogrammed fax machine 
can be released to staff in accordance with this policy. 

 
4. Multi-use fax machines are defined as capable of copying as well as receiving and sending faxes.  

Multi-use fax machines may only be put in service if an alarm is set to notify operators of a fax being 
received.   

 
5. Prior to faxing PHI, NIHD personnel must either:  

a. Verify the fax number as being accurate and correct for the intended recipient, or 
b. Utilize a preprogrammed fax number by accessing the number memory of the fax machine or 

faxing program. 
 

6. Verification of a fax number must be done through one of the following means: 
a. Contacting the intended recipient (or the recipient’s office personnel) and reading back the 

number to that individual; or 
b. Sending a test fax asking for the recipient to send a verification fax back. 

 

7. NIHD personnel performing fax verification must document  
a. Who verified the recipient’s fax number for the recipient; and  
b. Which NIHD person performed the verification; and 
c. The date and time of verification. 

Page 155 of 380

155



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sending Protected Health Information by Fax 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 2 

 
FAXING TO AN UNINTENDED RECIPIENT 
 

8. NIHD personnel who send faxes of PHI in accordance with this policy, but through human error still 
send a fax to an unintended recipient, must report the mistake to the NIHD Compliance Officer via 
phone or via email as soon as the mistake is recognized and also must complete a PHI Breach 
Notification Form.  The PHI Breach Notification Form is available on the Hospital Intranet.   Note: 

The report to CDPH requires that the violator be named in the report. 
 

9. NIHD personnel who are notified by an unintended recipient that they received a fax containing PHI 
must report to the Compliance Officer by phone or email, as soon as possible, but not later than the 

end of their shift.  The employee who receives this notification from the unintended recipient must 
report the following: 

a. The name and telephone number of the unintended recipient. 
b. The time and date of the notification by the unintended recipient. 

c. A description of the PHI that was received including the patients name and the general type of 
PHI (doctors’ orders, test results, etc.). 

d. The disposition of the PHI (e.g. the recipient will send the document(s) back to us, the 
recipient will deliver the document(s) to the hospital, the recipient will shred the 

document(s)). 
 

10.  If the unintended recipient is a hospital, medical or dental practice or facility, NIHD employees 
receiving notification from those offices may instruct the offices to shred the documents or send them 

to the NIHD Compliance Officer. 
 

11.  If the unintended recipient is other than a hospital, medical or dental practice or facility, then the 
NIHD employee must ask the recipient to send the documents to the NIHD Compliance Officer.  

Shredding is not to be recommended. 
 
 

REFERENCES 

1. CA Health and Safety Code 1280.15 
2. 42 USC Section 17939 

 

 

Committee Approval Date 

Compliance Committee  10/24/2017 

Administration 11/10/2017 

Board of Directors 11/15/2017 

Last Board of Directors Review 1/15/2020 

 
Revised: 2-14-12, 10/4/2017 
Reviewed: 1/18/17, 10/17/2017; 1/16/2019 
Supersedes: 

Page 156 of 380

156



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Sending Protected Health Information by Fax 

Scope: District Wide  Manual: Compliance  

Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: 12/1/2017 

 

 3 

 
Responsibility for review and maintenance: Compliance Officer 
Index Listings:  Fax, Faxing, PHI 

Initiated:  4-9-2010 

Page 157 of 380

157



Page 158 of 380

158



Page 159 of 380

159



Page 160 of 380

160



Page 161 of 380

161



Page 162 of 380

162



Page 163 of 380

163



Page 164 of 380

164



Page 165 of 380

165



Page 166 of 380

166



Page 167 of 380

167



Page 168 of 380

168



Page 169 of 380

169



Page 170 of 380

170



Page 171 of 380

171



Page 172 of 380

172



Page 173 of 380

173



Page 174 of 380

174



Page 175 of 380

175



Page 176 of 380

176



Page 177 of 380

177



Page 178 of 380

178



Page 179 of 380

179



Page 180 of 380

180



Page 181 of 380

181



Page 182 of 380

182



Page 183 of 380

183



Page 184 of 380

184



Page 185 of 380

185



Page 186 of 380

186



Page 187 of 380

187



Page 188 of 380

188



Page 189 of 380

189



Page 190 of 380

190



Page 191 of 380

191



Page 192 of 380

192



Page 193 of 380

193



Page 194 of 380

194



Page 195 of 380

195



Page 196 of 380

196



Page 197 of 380

197



Page 198 of 380

198



Page 199 of 380

199



Page 200 of 380

200



Page 201 of 380

201



Page 202 of 380

202



Page 203 of 380

203



Page 204 of 380

204



Page 205 of 380

205



Page 206 of 380

206



Page 207 of 380

207



Page 208 of 380

208



Page 209 of 380

209



Page 210 of 380

210



Page 211 of 380

211



Page 212 of 380

212



Page 213 of 380

213



Page 214 of 380

214



Page 215 of 380

215



Page 216 of 380

216



Page 217 of 380

217



Page 218 of 380

218



Page 219 of 380

219



Page 220 of 380

220



Page 221 of 380

221



Page 222 of 380

222



Page 223 of 380

223



Page 224 of 380

224



Page 225 of 380

225



Page 226 of 380

226



Page 227 of 380

227



Page 228 of 380

228



Page 229 of 380

229



Page 230 of 380

230



Page 231 of 380

231



Page 232 of 380

232



Page 233 of 380

233



Page 234 of 380

234



Page 235 of 380

235



Page 236 of 380

236



Page 237 of 380

237



Page 238 of 380

238



Page 239 of 380

239



Page 240 of 380

240



Page 241 of 380

241



Page 242 of 380

242



Page 243 of 380

243



Page 244 of 380

244



Page 245 of 380

245



Page 246 of 380

246



Page 247 of 380

247



Page 248 of 380

248



Page 249 of 380

249



Page 250 of 380

250



Page 251 of 380

251



Page 252 of 380

252



Page 253 of 380

253



Page 254 of 380

254



Page 255 of 380

255



Page 256 of 380

256



Page 257 of 380

257



Page 258 of 380

258



Page 259 of 380

259



Page 260 of 380

260



Page 261 of 380

261



Page 262 of 380

262



Page 263 of 380

263



Page 264 of 380

264



Page 265 of 380

265



Page 266 of 380

266



Page 267 of 380

267



Page 268 of 380

268



Page 269 of 380

269



Page 270 of 380

270



Page 271 of 380

271



Page 272 of 380

272



Page 273 of 380

273



Page 274 of 380

274



Page 275 of 380

275



Page 276 of 380

276



Page 277 of 380

277



Page 278 of 380

278



Page 279 of 380

279



Page 280 of 380

280



Page 281 of 380

281



Page 282 of 380

282



Page 283 of 380

283



Page 284 of 380

284



Page 285 of 380

285



Page 286 of 380

286



Page 287 of 380

287



Page 288 of 380

288



Page 289 of 380

289



Page 290 of 380

290



Page 291 of 380

291



Page 292 of 380

292



Page 293 of 380

293



Page 294 of 380

294



Page 295 of 380

295



Page 296 of 380

296



Page 297 of 380

297



Page 298 of 380

298



Page 299 of 380

299



Page 300 of 380

300



Page 301 of 380

301



Page 302 of 380

302



Page 303 of 380

303



Page 304 of 380

304



Page 305 of 380

305



Page 306 of 380

306



Page 307 of 380

307



Page 308 of 380

308



Page 309 of 380

309



Page 310 of 380

310



Page 311 of 380

311



Page 312 of 380

312



Page 313 of 380

313



Page 314 of 380

314



Page 315 of 380

315



Page 316 of 380

316



Page 317 of 380

317



Page 318 of 380

318



Page 319 of 380

319



Page 320 of 380

320



Page 321 of 380

321



Page 322 of 380

322



Page 323 of 380

323



Page 324 of 380

324



Page 325 of 380

325



Page 326 of 380

326



Page 327 of 380

327



Page 328 of 380

328



Page 329 of 380

329



Page 330 of 380

330



Page 331 of 380

331



Page 332 of 380

332



Page 333 of 380

333



Page 334 of 380

334



Page 335 of 380

335



Page 336 of 380

336



Page 337 of 380

337



Page 338 of 380

338



Page 339 of 380

339



Page 340 of 380

340



Page 341 of 380

341



Page 342 of 380

342



Page 343 of 380

343



Page 344 of 380

344



Page 345 of 380

345



Page 346 of 380

346



Page 347 of 380

347



Page 348 of 380

348



Page 349 of 380

349



Page 350 of 380

350



Page 351 of 380

351



Page 352 of 380

352



Page 353 of 380

353



Page 354 of 380

354



Page 355 of 380

355



Page 356 of 380

356



Page 357 of 380

357



Page 358 of 380

358



Page 359 of 380

359



Page 360 of 380

360



Page 361 of 380

361



Page 362 of 380

362



Page 363 of 380

363



Page 364 of 380

364



Page 365 of 380

365



Page 366 of 380

366



Page 367 of 380

367



Page 368 of 380

368



Page 369 of 380

369



Page 370 of 380

370



Page 371 of 380

371



Page 372 of 380

372



Page 373 of 380

373



Page 374 of 380

374



Page 375 of 380

375



Page 376 of 380

376



Page 377 of 380

377



Page 378 of 380

378



Page 379 of 380

379



Page 380 of 380

380


	Table of Contents
	Agenda, July 15 2020 Regular Meeting
	Agenda, July 15 2020 Regular Meeting

	Network Security Penetration Test Results
	Network Security Penetration Test

	Cares Act Funding, District Board Resolution 20-05
	District Board Resolution 20-05, Cares Act

	Pension Funding Policy
	Pension Funding Policy and Procedure approval

	Amendment 5 to Defined Benefit Retirement Plan
	Amendment 5 to NIHD Retirement Plan

	District Board Resolution 20-06, Appropriations Limit
	District Board Resolution 20-06, Appropriations Limit

	Refunding of 2010 Revenue Bonds, District Board Resolution 20-07
	District Board Resolution 20-07, Bond Refinancing

	Pathways for Development, Nursing Policy
	Pathways for Development Policy and Procedure

	Reports
	ROI Committee Report, July 2020
	Pioneer Home Health Quarterly Report, July 2020

	Chief of Staff Report, July 2020
	Medical Executive Committee report July 2015

	Consent Agenda
	Minutes, June 17 2020 regular meeting
	Minutes, June 24 2020 Special Meeting
	Minutes, June 26 2020 special meeting
	Minutes, June 27 2020 Special Meeting
	Minutes, July 6 2020 special meeting
	Interim CEO Report
	CNO Report, July 2020
	Interim CMO Report, July 2020
	Policy and Procedure annual approvals, Compliance
	Consent Agenda Policies and Procedures (batch 2)




